EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, February 24, 2016
6:00 p.m.
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street {Door 36)

Note, public notice of this meeting given by posting at the District Office, Levi Leonard Elementary
School Office, Theodore Robinson Intermediate School Office, J.C. McKenna Middle School Office, High
School Office, Evansville School District Web Site: Evansville.k12.wi.us, and by forwarding the agenda to
the Evansville Review, Union Bank & Trust and Eager Free Public Library.

V.

Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Sandra Spanton Nelson Jane Oberdorf
Eric Busse Melissa Hammann
John Rasmussen Derek Allen

Approve Agenda.

Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events:

[ ]

Open Enrollment — February 1 — April 29, 2016

Energy Fair — April 22

Back To School Days — August 10, 10:00 am — 2:00 pm and August 16, 3:00 pm — 7:00 pm
Congratulations to JC McKenna Student Council/School on Receiving the — Spirit of
Excellence Award

Information & Discussion:

A. 2016-2017 4K Handbook.
B.

Bus Transportation.

Budget Finance — Chair, Spanton Nelson:
A. Discussion ltems:

B.

1. 2016-2017 Budget Update.

2. 2016-2017 Staff Proposal.

3. Insurance Committee Update.

4. Evansville Education Foundation Update.

5. Food Service and Custodians Compensation Committee Update.
Develop Budget Finance Agenda ltems for April 27, 2016, Meeting.

Business {Action Items):
A. Approval/Denial of Bus Transportation for Little Tweets Child Care Center LLC.
B. Approval/Denial of Proposed Employee Handhook Changes:

#1, #2, #3 ~ Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 29, 8.05, Sick Leave Bank - Add Number of Sick Days
to the Bank.

#7 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 50, Section 7, 7.02 - Sick/Personal Days - Change All.

#8, #9 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 51, 7.02, Par. 8, Sick, Personne!, Bereavement, and
Leave Benefits - Change Language.

#10 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 53, 8.01 A, Retirement Notification - Change Deadline.



VI,

VIIL.

Xl

Xil.

XMl.

XV,

C. Approval of Staff Changes: Resignation of Co-and Extra-Curricular Coach (Assistant Track),
Hiring of Co-and Extra-Curricular Coaches (Assistant Track and IV Softball) and
Retirement.

D. Approval of February 10, 2016, Regular Meeting Minutes. “

Policies — Chair, Hammann:

A. First Reading of Policies:

1. #458 — Evansville Community School District Wellness.

#458.1 ~ District Nutrition Standards (Student Nutrition Procedures).

#458.2 — District Nutrition Standards.

#458.3 — Guidelines for Food and Beverages Offered to Students at School Functions.

#383 — Animals in School.

. #834 - Domestic Pets on School Premises.

B. Second Reading of Policies:

#320 — General Organization Plan.

#343.3 — Online Learning/Virtual School Program.

#343.31 - Online Learning/Virtual School Program-Administrative Rule,

#343.3 Form — Virtual School Program Form.

#522.2 — Tobacco/Nicotine/Electronic Cigarette Use By Staff On School Premises.

#832 — Tobacco/Nicotine-Free School Property.

#832.1 - Use of Tobacco/Nicotine/Electronic Cigarette Products On School Premises.

o v R W

Nouwkwhe

Board Development — Chair, Braunschweig:
A. Continuous System Improvement {CSl} Plan Update.
B. Develop Board Development Agenda for April 27, 2016, Meeting.

Future Agenda — March 9, 2016, Regular Meeting Agenda.
Five Minute Break.

Executive Session —

a. Under Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1){c) considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the
governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, to discuss an employee
matter.

b. Under Wisconsin State Statute 19.85{1){c) and (e} to consider employment,
promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee
over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, and to
deliberate and discuss strategy concerning collective bargaining negotiations; namely
to discuss negotiation strategy concerning the 2015-2016 contract with the Evansville
Education Association covering teachers.

Reconvene in Open Session.

Business {Action ltem):
A. Approval of Staff Changes: Teacher Staff Resignation/Retirement.

Adjourn.



This notice may be supplemented with additions to the agenda that come to the attention of the Board prior to the meeting. A final
agenda will be posted and provided to the media no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting or no later than 2 hours prior to the
meeting in the event of an emergency.

Upecn reasonable notice, effort will be made to accommodate the needs of people with disabilities through appropriate aids and
services. For additional information or to request this service, contact the District Office at 340 Fair Street, 882-3387 or 882-3386.
Persons needing more specific information about the agenda items should call 882-3387 or 882-3385 at least 24 hours prior to the

meeting. Posted: 2/17/16



V.

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda / Briefs / Clerks
Wednesday, February 24, 2016
6:00 p.m.
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)

Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Sandra Spanton Nelson Jane Oberdorf
Eric Busse Melissa Hammann
John Rasmussen Derek Allen
Braunschweig Busse Rasmussen Spanton Nelson
Hammann Allen Obherdorf
Approve Agenda.

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the agenda as presented (OR add or remove items).

Motion by , 2nd
Discussion?
Vote voice

Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events:

e Open Enrollment — February 1 — April 29, 2016

» Energy Fair— April 22

e Back To School Days — August 10, 10:00 am — 2:00 pm and August 16, 3:00 pm —7:00 pm

s Congratulations to JC McKenna Student Council/School on Receiving the — Spirit of
Excellence Award

Information & Discussion:

A. 2016-2017 4K Handbook — Enclosed is a copy of the 2016-2017 4K Handbook. We will ask
for your approval at the March Board meeting.

Who presented?

Any discussion?

B. Bus Transportation — Enclosed are the policies and state statutes. Mr. Roth will be asking
for approval or denial for transporting students to Little Tweets Child Care Center LLC later
in the meeting.

Who presented?

Any discussion?

Page 1 of 7



Budget Finance — Chair, Spanton Nelson:
A. Discussion Items:
1. 2016-2017 Budget Update — Ms. Treuden will present verbally.
Who presented?
Any discussion?

2. 2016-2017 Staff Proposal — Ms. Treuden has enclosed information regarding staffing
for the 2016-2017 school year. Mr. Roth will be asking for approval at the March
Board meeting.
Who presented?
Any discussion?

3. Insurance Committee Update — The Committee will be meeting on March 14 and will
make recommendations to the Board in April. Enclosed are the January 18 minutes.
Who presented?
Any discussion?

4. Evansville Education Foundation Update — Ms. Hammann will present.
Who presented?
Any discussion?

5. Food Service and Custodians Compensation Committee Update — The next meeting
for both Committee’s is March 7. Enclosed are the minutes of the January 11 meetings.
Who presented?
Any discussion?

B. Develop Budget Finance Agenda Items for April 27, 2016, Meeting.
ltems:

Page 2 of 7



V.

Business {Action Items):
A. Approval/Denial of Bus Transportation for Little Tweets Child Care Center LLC ~

Suggested Motion: | move to approve bus transportation for students who attend Little
Tweets Child Care Center LLC at no cost to the families.

Motion by , 2nd
Discussion?
Vote

Or

Suggested Motion: | move to approve bus transportation for students who attend Little

Tweets Child Care Center LLC at a cost to the families of § per student.
Motion by | 2nd

Discussion?

Vote

Or

Suggested Motion: | move we deny bus transportation for ineligible bus riders to Little
Tweets Child Care Center LLC.

Motion by , 2nd
Discussion?
Vote

B. Approval/Denial of Proposed Employee Handbook Changes:
#1, #2, #3 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 29, 8.05, Sick Leave Bank — Add Number of Sick Days
to the Bank.
#7 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 50, Section 7, 7.02 — Sick/Personal Days — Change All.
#8, #9 - Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 51, 7.02, Par. 8, Sick, Personnel, Bereavement, and
Leave Benefits — Change Language.
#10— Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 53, 8.01 A, Retirernent Notification — Change Deadline.

Suggested Motion: | move we follow the proposed Employee Handbook changes, as
presented and recommended of the Employee Handboolk Committee, to approve items, #1,
#2, and #3 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 29, 8.05, Sick Leave Bank — Add Number of Sick Days
to the Bank, and #10 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 53, 8.01 A, Retirement Notification —
Change Deadline, and deny items #7 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 50, Section 7, 7.02 —
Sick/Personal Days — Change All, #8 and #9 — Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 51, 7.02, Par. 8,
Sick, Personnel, Bereavement, and Leave Benefits — Change Language, as presented.

Page 3 of 7



Motion by , 20
Discussion?
Vote

C. Approval of Staff Changes: Resignation of Co-and Extra-Curricular Coach (Assistant Track)
and Hiring of Co-and Extra-Curricular Coaches (JV Softball and Assistant Track) — Please
approve: -

1. David Soddy, Assistant Track Coach, resigning effective February 1, 2016.

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the resignation of David Soddy as Assistant Track

Coach, effective February 1, 2016.

Motion by , 20
Discussion?
Vote

2. Gary Feldt, 3™ grade teacher, retiring effective end of 2015-2016 school year

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the retirement of Gary Feldt as 3™ grade teacher,
effective at the end of the 2015-2016 school year.

Maotion by , 2nd
Discussion?
Vote

Suggested Motion: | move to waive the $500 penalty for Gary Feldt, 3" grade teacher, for
retirement notification after February 1.

3. Cynthia Ziegler, JV Softball Coach, 51,968.
4, , Assistant Track Coach,

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the hiring of JV Softball Coach, Cynthia Ziegler, for a

stipend of $1,968, and the Assistant Track Coach, , for a stipend of
Motion by , 2nd

Discussion?

Vote

D. Approval of February 10, 2016, Regular Meeting Minutes — Please approve the enclosed
minutes.

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the February 10, 2016, Regular Meeting Minutes, as
presented.

Page 4 of 7



V.

Vil

Motion by , 2"

Discussion?

Vote

Policies — Chair, Hammann:

Who presented?
Any discussion?

A. First Reading of Policies:

oA LNR

#458 — Evansville Community School District Wellness.

#458.1 — District Nutrition Standards (Student Nutrition Procedures).

#458.2 — District Nutrition Standards.

#458.3 — Guidelines for Food and Beverages Offered to Students at School Functions.
#383 - Animals in School.

#834 — Domestic Pets on School Premises.

Who presented?
Any discussion?

B. Second Reading of Policies:

NSO AW

#320 - General Organization Plan.

#343.3 — Onfine Learning/Virtual School Program. .

#343.31 — Online Learning/Virtual School Program-Administrative Rule.

#343.3 Form - Virtual School Program Form.

#522.2 — Tobacco/Nicotine/Electronic Cigarette Use By Staff On-School Premises.
#832 - Tobacco/Nicotine-Free School Property.

#832.1 - Use of Tobacco/Nicotine/Electronic Cigarette Products On School Premises.

Board Development — Chair, Braunschweig:
Who presented?
Any discussion?

A. Continuous System Improvement {CSI) Plan Update — Upcoming meetings:

- Teaching and Learning — February 23

- Workforce Engagement and Development — February 22

- Communication and Community Engagement — February 18
- Technology — February 24

- Facilities and Operations — March 16

- Climate and Culture — February 25

B. Develop Board Development Agenda for April 27, 2016, Meeting,

[tems:

Page 5 of 7



XL

Future Agenda —- March 9, 2016, Regular Meeting Agenda — A draft of the agenda is
enclosed.

Five Minute Break.

Executive Session -

a. Under Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1)}{c) considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which
the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, to discuss an
employee matter.

b. Under Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1)(c) and {e) to consider employment,
promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee
over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, and
to deliberate and discuss strategy concerning collective bargaining negotiations;
namely to discuss negotiation strategy concerning the 2015-2016 contract with the
Evansville Education Association covering teachers.

Suggested Motion: | move we move into executive session, under Wisconsin State Statute
19.85(1){c) considering employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation
data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or
exercises responsibility, to discuss an employee matter and Under Wisconsin State Statute
19.85(1)(c) and (e) to consider employment, promotion, compensation or performance
evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction
or exercises responsibility, and to deliberate and discuss strategy concerning collective
hargaining negotiations; namely to discuss negotiation strategy concerning the 2015-2016
contract with the Evansville Education Association covering teachers.

Motion by ,2nd
Discussion?
Vote

Rasmussen Spanton Nelson Hammann Allen
Oberdorf Braunschweig Busse

Time
OCthers in attendance:
Discussion:

Page 6 of 7



XH.

Xl

XIv.

Any handouts? If so, get copy for Kelly
Reconvene in Open Session.
Time

Business {Action ltem):

A. Approval of Staff Changes: Teacher Staff Resignation/Retirement.

Suggested Motion: | move we accept the of

, effective ,

as presented.

Motion by , 2nd
Discussion?
Vote

Adjourn.

Suggested Motion: | move we adjourn the meeting.
Motion by , 2nd
Discussion?

Vote Time

Page 7 of 7



Spirit of Excellence

The Spirit of Excellence program honors Wisconsin schools that achieve excellence in leadership
development, school spirit, sportsmanship and service to school and community.

Each year, a selection committee consisting of members from WASC, AWSA, Wisconsin
Interscholastic Athletic Association, Wisconsin Association of School District Administrators,
Wisconsin Athletic Directors Association, Wisconsin Parent Teacher Association, Rotary
District 6250, WEA Trust and the Milwaukee Bucks selects one high school from each of
WASC’s six regions to receive the award. From that pool, one school is selected as the state
winner.

Regional winners receive local recognition and a school banner. The high school selected as the
overall state winner will receive a trophy at an assembly, which is filmed and televised during
WIAA state basketball tournament telecasts — a tribute to the excellence they have achieved.

To be eligible, schools must be a member of WIAA and WASC and submit a portfolio that
demonstrates achievement in each of three key dimensions in a calendar year beginning February
1.



Parent Handbook 2016-17

Evansville Community School District 4K Centers

Kids Korner Pathway Preschool
320 Fair Street 312 S. Third Street
Evansville, Wl 53536 Evansville, Wl 53536
(608) 882-6672 (608) 314-7687
Jammie Fellows Nichole Soto
Magic Moments Wee Ones
112 W. Church Street 618 Porter Road
Evansville, Wi 53536 Evansville, Wl 53536
(608) 882-6262 {608} 882-3400
Tina Harnack LeeAnn Hallg

Levi Leonard Elementary Principal/4K Coordinator:

Joanie Dobbs
401 South Third Street
Evansville, W1 53536
Telephone: (608) 882-3104
Fax: (608) 882-5838
dobbsi@evansville.k12.wi.us




Supply List

Magic Moments
24 pack crayon

10 pack markers

4 glue sticks

1 pack of sticky notes

1 package gallon Ziploc bags
Ream of copy paper

1 box of 5 oz. cups

1 set of clothes to be kept on site
Back pack '

Wee Ones

Large boxes of Kleenex (girls only)

Rolls of paper towel {boys only)

2 pocket folders

1 pair of children scissors

1 24 pack crayons

1 10 pack markers

1 bottle of school glue

10 glue sticks

Supply box

3 containers of Playdough (variety of colors)
2 reams of white copy paper

8 #2 pencils

1 art smock (an old, adult sized t-shirt will work)
1 small package dry erase markers (wide)

1 extra set of clothing {to be left at school}
Back pack

Pathways
Large boxes of Kleenex

2 pocket folders

1 24 pack crayons

10 pack markers

3 bottles of School glue

Glue sticks

3 containers of playdough (variety of colors)
3 pack sticky notes

12 number 2 pencils

1 package of 20 count Ziploc Gallon Storage Bags
1 ream of white copy paper

1 extra set of clothing {to be kept on site)
Back pack

Kids Korner

2 pocket folders

1 24 pack crayons

110 pack markers

1 small bottle Elmer’s glue

10 glue sticks

1 supply box

3 containers of playdough {variety of colors)
1 package sticky notes

1 ream white copy paper

1 box Kleenex (boys only)

L roll paper towel {girls only)

Back pack

1 set of extra clothing to be kept on site

Please note: We share all supplies. You will not receive any supplies back at the end of the school year.

Fees

There are no materials or enrollment fees for the 4K program. Sites charge fees for wrap-around daycare, field
trips and special projects. Please discuss the fee schedule with the site.

Discrimination and Harassment Policies

To File a Complaint: Complete Evansville Policy 412.1 Discrimination or Harassment Complaint Form available from your school website,

Nondiscrimination Statement; The Evansville Community Scheol District prohibits harassment or discrimination against any pupil in any
program or activity on the basis of sex, race, religion, national origin, ancestry, creed, pregnancy, marital or parental status, sexual orientation,
physical, mental, emotional or learning disahility, or any other basis protected by law.

School District Polices

To access these policies you may:
» Cantact any of the school offices, including the District Office.
* Go to our website: www.evansville.k12.wi.us.




ECSD Strong Start 4Kids 2016-2017 School Year

Assyuist 2016 2ple

July:

i %ﬁk%%

o o %&% mil
ezl

ty 16

s 0 2 |00
o

& *5 k05

o [Bria|i0E [ is 0
L e e

203 20

L2 GG

Salgl =2 -
5 [Ebalasns: S5
R T e R B R

TR T

B (7 (T T
mgmﬁ%m 13

ETH
e : il 5
R a"’ﬁ«*?&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ gil w [ | el v
R O “‘@ »ﬁ&é pir 1!3%% éﬁ?ﬁ%@%@“ﬁ% 54
k ‘.: B m ,,?5?
e
; & i e i
; 4z o i et
% |
25 O
|
Key Sapt 1 First Day of School for K-12
) Sept § Labof Day No Schooi
Professional Development (9) - No Students — . o
(it e g
Mo School Oct 10 Professmai Deveio;}ment Day - No School
| Quarter End (4 - 1/2 } - No Students PM Nov 4 End of 1st Quarter; /2 Day K-8 Grading
) Nov 23 No School
Holiday (3) - No Sehoot Nov 24 Thanksgiving - No School
Teacher Workdays {1.5)- No Students Noy 25 Mo School
Strong Start 4K Students Dec 5 Professional Development Day - No School
Dec23-30  Winter Break - No Schoot
dJan 2 Students Retun
Daily Schedule: Jan 16 Professional Developrment Day - No School
Jan 20 End of 2nd Quarter; 1/2 Day K-8 Grading
. Feb 13 Professional Development Day - No School
8:00~11:00 a.m,
Morning Feb 24 No Sthool
Afternoon 12:00 - 3:00 p.m. March 13 Professional Development Day - No School
March 24 End of 3rd Quarter; 172 Day K-8 Grading
March 27 - 31 Spring Break - No School
April 3 Students Return
Aprit 18 Easter
If school is closed for 4K more than one day, April 17 Professional Development Day - No School
make-up days will be added on Fridays. May 28 Memorial Day - No School
June 7 End of 4th Quarter; 1/2 Day K-8 Siudents
Jung 11 High School Commencement




Parent Handbook 2016-17

Evansville Community School District 4K Centers

Table of Contents

Welcome ...
Elgibility. .o
Attendance...oiiinnnnne.
Behaviors....cooveuneene

Bus Transportation, Bus Regulations, Behavior..........cccevcccnnvniccnn
Clothing, Labels, Appropriate Dress .. se e ereresae

Conferences....couvrnnn

Early Dismissal, Snow Days, Late StartS... e

Family Qutreach ..o e sesans
=] o B I (TS OV OO UT U
Health Procedures. ...

Parent VOIUNTEEIS...cvi s e e sreere e snen
Religious Beliefs..oiiin e,
Visitor/Visitor Registration......ceeemineiannn,

ST S - - N
ﬁmmmmmmmmwwwp



Strong Start 4Kids
Welcome

Welcome to Strong Start 4Kids, the Evansville Community School District’s 4K program. We are looking
forward to working with you and your child and anticipate an exciting and productive year. We
recognize that in order to be successful in school, our children need support from both home and
school. Evansville’s 4K program is community based program. The School District will work diligently
with community day care providers, families, and students to foster an environment that promotes
learning through student centered instruction and decision making. Trust, respect, community
involvement, communication and recognition of both student and staff achievements will be high
priorities.

This handbook outlines the various aspects and expectations of our program to help you be a part of the
team that makes 4K successful for your child. The sites will also provide a handbook to you with policies
specific to their site. In addition, all sites offer wrap-around childcare. Please connect with each site for
more information on child care services which are separate from the 4K program.

Mission Statement and Guiding Principles

Mission Statement: The Evansville Community School District Strong Start 4Kids will provide quality,
developmentally appropriate, play-based learning experiences to all four-year-olds, through
collaboration with community, family, and school partnerships.

Guiding Principles:

s Play based and developmentally appropriate learning environment.

e Strong community partnerships.

¢ Ongoing collahoration and professional development among 4K sites.

o Unified curriculum based on Wisconsin Model Early Leanings Standards (WMELS). Go to
http://ec.dpi.wi.gov/ec_ecqualhm for more information and a copy of the standards.

¢ Ongoing collaboration and strong parent communication.

s Universal access and parental choice,

e Comprehensive early learning standards and assessments.

s Astrong focus on parent school communication and regular family outreach activities.




Nurturing Learning Environment

Four Year Old Kindergarten will provide...

A play-based envitonment, where knowledge is constructed rather than information that is
handed out.

A nurturing environment that is rich in opportunities to explore, make choices and have hands-
on activities.

Independent as well as small and large group cooperative activities that emphasize process,
rather than product.

Student created clear classroom expectations.

An environment where diversity is celebrated and that talents and strengths of all children are
nourished.

A developmentally appropriate literacy-based program based on WMELS. This includes
providing a literacy/print rich environment, exposure to literature and vocabulary, opportunities
for dialogue, learning through social interaction, and opportunities for dramatic play, listening,
writing, and other literature rich cpportunities. Children will be exposed to art, music, science,
math, and other subjects within the play-based environment.

Activities that meet the varied developmental levels of students.

Experiences that will stimulate curiosity, leading tc understanding as a basis for future learning.
Appropriate socio-emotional skills development, including positive social interactions, problem-
solving and conflict resolution.

Parents as Partners

A variety of opportunities for parents to get involved. Communication will be frequent and
through multiple means such as newsletters, volunteer opportunities, conferences, fieldtrips,
etc.

A daily schedule/routine will be followed and communicated to children and parents.

Parents and teachers will work together to support positive character development.
Educational opportunities will be offered to parents to support the social-emotional, academic
and physical growth of their children,

Teachers as Facilitators

Four-Year-Old Kindergarten teachers...

Will utilize the "Read It Once Again” as a basis for teaching, which includes centers and teachers
actively interacting with children.

Follow the curricular guidelines, program and student assessment structures, professional
development activities, and site agreement guidelines.

Provide a classroom with a variety of materials that are accessible and appealing to four year
olds.

Involve community resources whenever available and appropriate.

Model appropriate language and behaviors for students, and guide student choices.

Be reflective in their planning and implementation of curriculum.



Eligibility

Students must be 4 years of age by September 15 and are only eligible for 4K for one academic school
year. There will be no early admissions. Participants must be residents of the Evansville Community
School District or apply through open enrollment, if eligible and space is available.

Attendance

It is an expectation that each child will attend the site when school is in session. Regular attendance at
the 4 year old preschool level establishes healthy patterns of attendance that can last throughout the
school years and into adult employment. Each location maintains attendance records.

If students are going to be absent from the site for any reason, parents must call in the absence prior to
the start of the 4K session. Please contact the site your child attends at the numbers listed for each site
in this handbook. Please inform the person answering the phone of your child’s name and reason for
absence.

Attendance records are kept daily and submitted to the Evansville Community School District Office
weekly.

Behavior

Strong Start 4Kids promotes the philosophy of positive guidance for children to develop self-control over
their actions and increase their self-esteem. The goal in every 4K classroom is to develop appropriate
social skills so that the child can become an independent and competent learner.

The classroom teachers and teacher assistants have the responsibility of guiding children’s behavior and
ensuring the safety of all the children in the classroom:

s Giving clear and reasonable expectations
s Teaching the correct behavior or replacement behavior
¢ Making the children feel important and respected

Non-confrontational technigques used by staff will include ignoring, suggesting, praising, redirecting,
shadowing, staying calm, modeling, changing the environment, and providing logical and meaningful
consequences.

Adult interaction may be necessary when a child displays a lack of self-contrel. The child may be
removed from a situation for a short period of time and returned to the activity when the staff and child
determine he or she is ready.



Bus Transportation

Under Section 121.54{2) Wisconsin Statutes, a pupil attending a public elementary or secondary school,
including four- and five-year-old kindergarten, is entitled to transportation by the public school district
in which the pupil resides if the pupil resides two or more miles from the nearest public school the pupil
is entitled to attend.

The District will provide transportation for 4K students, as requested. The bus routes to the sites at
8:00 and from the sites at 3:00 include students Kindergarten- Grade 12. This transportation is
available to and from each 4K session. (For example, if your child is in the morning session, bus
transportation is available to you before 8:00 and to home at 11:00.) Please be aware that requests for
transportation may limit options for site selection to allow for bus routes to be as short as possible. The
District may not be able to accommodate parental requests for transportation changes once the bus
routes have been finalized.

Bus Regulations/Behavior

Students who do not normally ride the bus may wish to ride the bus home with a friend. They must have
a written form filled out by their parent or guardian. Forms may be obtained in the office. [n some cases,
due to the overcrowding of buses, they may not be allowed to ride home with their friend.

At the Bus Stop: Students must walk and wait safely. They should be at the bus stop FIVE MINUTES
before the bus arrives. Stay at the stop. The house, yard, garage, trees, and fences near the bus stop are
the property of others and must be respected.

Rules of Safety for Bus Riders:

Drivers will not tolerate any behavior that distracts or interferes with them driving safely. All passengers
are entitled to receive safe transportation; drivers will not allow behavior that jeopardizes safe
transportation.

Transportation to and from the site is a privilege, which will be suspended or revoked if necessary.
Students Will:

Be on time at the designated pick-up points.

2. Be careful in approaching bus stops. Walk an the left side toward oncoming traffic. If you cross
the road, do so in front of the hus after checking with the driver for a hand signal to cross.

3. Bus riders shall board the bus at their site's loading zone unless permission is granted otherwise.
Reach seat in bus without disturbing or crowding other pupils. Bus driver retains the right to
assign seats.

5. Riders are not to extend any part of their bodies out of windows or move about the bus at any
time.

6. Riders are expected to ohey the school bus driver promptly.

7. Help keep the bus clean, sanitary, and orderly--no littering.

8. Damage done to seats or other bus equipment must be paid by the rider or his/her parents or
guardians.



9. Riders shall remain seated unless exiting the bus. If you cross the road, do so in front of the bus,
after checking with the bus driver for a hand signal to cross.

10. The bus is considered an extension of the classroom. Therefore the same expectations and
consequences for student behavior exist while riding a school bus.

11. The bus driver is in charge of the bus at all times, and retains the right to establish additional
rules necessary to promote the health, welfare, and safety of the riders.

12. Students must have written permission from parents or guardians 1o leave the bus at a spot
other than the regular loading areas.

13. Student requests for ridership on the bus other than school designated bus transportation will
be treated on an individual basis dependent on bus routes, seating availahility, and driver's
discretion. Written parent request is required using the Guest Rider Permission form.

14. Boom boxes, radios, tape players, or any other electronic or battery powered devices may not
be played on schoo! buses at any time.

15. These rules apply for any trip that is sponsored by the school.

Clothing, Labels, Appropriate Dressing

Removable ciothing that children wear to the site should be labeled with first and last name. Frequently,
children have identical clothing (e.g., boots, tennis shaoes, jackets, scarves, and backpacks) that they
easily misplace. Labels assist us in locating and returning clothing items to the correct owner.

Please be sure your child wears appropriate attire in the wintertime including boots, mittens, and snow
pants. Qur playgrounds become messy in the wintertime. If children’s clothing gets wet, rooms and
desks become messy, and students are uncomfortable sitting in wet clothes.

In warm weather, please do not let students wear “flip flops” or sandals that are not strapped on
securely as they often cause accidents on the playground.

Conferences

In addition to family outreach, parents will have the opportunity to help their child be successful by
attending parent teacher conferences. Individual sites will make arrangements for those opportunities
with you.

Early Dismissal/Snow Days/Late Starts

At the beginning of the year, a form will go home for parents to indicate where a child should go on
early dismissal or weather emergency days. This information will be used when dismissing your child. If
there is a change in this information at any time, please call the sites office as well as your child’s
teacher. Please listen to an area radio station, or watch a news station on a regular basis. If there is a
late start due to inclement weather, there will be no 4K {(morning and afternoon sessions) that day.

Family Outreach

An important component of Strong Start 4Kids is the Family Outreach Program. The focus of the
program is to provide families with opportunities to grow together. Throughout the school year,
families will be offered 87.5 hours of educational materials, workshops, activities and presentations free
of charge. Families are encouraged to participate.



Field Trips

4K students may be taking field trips throughout the year, coordinated jointly by the sites. The sites will
provide parents with information and permission slips prior to field trip. There may be a fee for field
trips.

Health Procedures

Student lllness:

If your child is ill or will not be attending, we request that you contact the 4K site where your child
attends by 8:30 a.m. on each morning of absence. If you have not called the site, the site will attempt to
call you.

Each site will provide parents policies and state mandates regarding:

e When children are too sick to come to the site

¢ Contacting parents when children become sick at the site
e Wisconsin Immunization Laws

e Medications at the site

Parent Volunteers

If you have time available during the site hours, we welcome you to volunteer in our classrooms. Please
inform your student’s teacher of the day(s) and time(s) that you would be willing to assist a teacher onh a
regular basis. You will find working with students most rewarding. Volunteers can help by:

¢ Chaperoning field trips

e Working with learning stations

¢  Working with an individual or small groups of students
e Assisting with classroom projects

Having their parent or other important adult chaperone on a field trip or assisting in the classroom is
very important and special to your child. Please do not bring your baby or toddler along when you
volunteer either on field trips or in the classroom. The baby or toddler takes your attention away from
the students in your station or on the field trip. This also keeps you from enjoying some special time
with your older child.

Evansville School Board policy #237 indicates that all volunteers who work with children in the following
capacities should have a background check before working with children. This check only needs to be
done once per calendar year, and all information will be kept confidential.

Religious Beliefs

Classroom teachers celebrate a number of special event and days throughout the school year. If your
child/ren cannot celebrate particular days or holidays due to religious beliefs, please share this with the
classroom teacher at the beginning of the year.



Visitors/Visitor Registration

We welcome parents into our building! However, we do have an obligation to protect the health, safety,
and welfare of our children. The following board pelicy has been developed.

1. Allvisitors/volunteers or salespersons must sign in and out at the site. Only those visitors who
have legitimate business at the site shall be welcome.

2. There shall be no loitering on site or building property. Building Leaders shall have complete
authority to exclude from the building any persons whom they have reason to believe are
disrupting the educational programs in the classroom orin the site, are disturbing the teachers

or children on the premises or whom the 4K staff believe are on the premises for the purpose of
committing an illegal act.



Revised: July 15, 1996 751
Revised: July 11, 2005
Revised: October 29, 2014

STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

A. Ridership Eligibility

B.

C.

The Evansville Community School District shall provide transportation services to all
students attending school within the District who reside two (2) or more miles from the
school they are to attend. Transportation may also be provided for students who reside less
than two (2) miles from the school they are to attend if in the Board’s judgment the health
and safety of the student is at issue. In addition, all students with disabilities who physically
or otherwise are unable to walk to their school will be offered transportation regardless of
distance. The District shall provide transportation for the students attending private schools
in accordance with the directives of Wisconsin Statutes.

Route and Schedules

The District Contracted Transportation Provider (Bus Contractor) shall conduct studies of
bus routes to provide the safest, shortest routes which will get all eligible riders to school and
back in the most economical way. Routes shall be arranged in such a way as to equalize, as
nearly as possible, the length of routes and loads to provide for the efficient utifization of
buses. Parent(s)/guardian(s) who would like their children either picked-up or dropped off at
a point other than their residence along the established bus route, must make a written request
to the Bus Contractor. The Bus Contractor will either approve or deny the request. If denied,
the parents/guardians may appeal the decision to the District Administrator, Requests will be
automatically denied if a bus is filled to capacity or if the request would cause the bus to
deviate from the established route.

The Bus Contractor shall organize bus routes in such a manner as to realize maximum
utilization of each vehicle subject to the approval of the Board. All questions or complaints
shall be made directly to the Bus Contractor first. If the party is not satisfied, they should
submit their complaint in writing, to the District Administrator with their preferred solution.
Only the most exceptional circumstances are to involve the Board.

Except as noted in paragraph one (1) above, transportation will not be provided to students
living within the municipal limits and within two (2) miles of the school as measured door to
door along the most direct route in which the school exists except for students with
disabilities. Students outside the municipal limits will be transported if their residence is
more than a hatf (.5) mile from school.

Location of Bus Stops, Pick-Up and Discharge Points

If a safe turn-around exists and the student lives half (.5) of a mile or more from the main
road, the bus will make a pick-up. If a safe turn-around or drive is not available, or the
student lives less than half of a mile from the main road, the student shall be expected to walk
to the main road or a safe, designated pick-up point. The Bus Contractors will judge the
relative safety of a turn-around area.



1. Where students’” homes are located in near proximity (one block), a central stop area will
be designated for all students involved. Safety will be the prime factor in choosing the
central pick-up spot. Stops should be at least .1 mile apart.

2. Student(s) living in concentrated population areas will be required to assemble at a bus-
loading point(s) unless a safety factor is involved. The bus will not pick up at individual
homes in concentrated population areas.

3. Dead end lanes and roads will not be entered by any bus unless the lane or road is 1/4
mile long for students in grades 4K-4 and half mile long for students in grades 5-12.
Such pick-ups must be examined and approved individually by the Bus Contractor. A
condition of pick-ups on dead-end lanes or roads shall include the availability of a safe
and adequate turn around for the bus and complete and timely snow removal.

4. Parent(s)/guardian(s) wanting a change in drop-off or pick-up points must file a signed
permanent transportation change form/request with the Bus Contractor. Changes must be
approved by the Bus Contractor and meet the following criteria:

a. Changes must be permanent in nature and for the duration of the school year, if
possible.

b. Room must be available on the bus if the requested change requires a change in
buses,

c. Temporary bus changes will be approved on a short-term basis for emergency
situations. Requests of a social nature will not be approved without 24 hour prior
approval and space availability. (Example: slumber parties, scout meetings,
overnight stays.)

All students are expected and encouraged to walk reasonable distances to bus stopé or to school,
Riders may be required to board the bus up to and including one (1) mile of roadway from the
point of intersection of their home driveway and the public road.

Legal Ref.: Sections 115.787 Wisconsin Statutes (Individualized Education Programs)
118.51(14) (Full-Time Open Enrollment, Transportation)
120.13(27m) (School Board Powers)
121.51-121.56 (Transportation Aid)

TRANS 300, P17, Wisconsin Administrative Code
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act
Local Ref.: Policy #751.1 — Procedures for Student Transportation Services
Policy # 751.2 — School Bus Safety Program
Policy #751.3 — Use of Video Cameras on School Buses
Policy #751.4 — Co-and Extra-Curricular Transportation
Policy #751.4 Form — Contest Travel Release



Approved: July 11, 2005 751.1
Revised: October 8, 2014

PROCEDURES FOR STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
(Alternative Pick-Up and Drop-Off Points)

1. Only students assigned to a bus may ride that bus.

2. Students may only be picked up and dropped off at their residence or designated pick-up and
drop-off point, except those students who have satisfied the District policy for transportation

to a day care provider. Approval for transportation to a day care provider must meet the
following criteria:

a.

R

All requests must be made by the parent/guardian to the District Contracted
Transportation Provider (Bus Contractor). All requests must include the name, address
and phone number of the day care provider.

There shall be no additional cost to the District.

There shall be no modification or change in any route to accommodate the request,

A change of bus assignment will be allowed only if seating is available on the bus.
The request should identify one (1) bus stop. Alternate schedules for alternate days or
weeks will be considered provided they follow a routine, are in writing and include
contact information for each destination,

3. A parent/guardian may request that a student be picked up or dropped off at a location other
than the student’s residence or day care provider only in an emergency. Such request must
follow this procedure:

d.

The parent/guardian must make the request by phone or in writing to the building
principal. The building principal will contact the Bus Contractor to determine that the
request meets the District’s requirements that a seat is available and that the location is on
an existing bus route.

A bus pass signed by the principal giving permission for the change is issued to the
student for presentation to the bus driver. The following information must be on the pass:
1. bus number approved to ride on;

L. place to be picked up or dropped off;

iii. day and date this will take place; and

Iv. principal’s signature.

— -

If alternate schedules are problematic for the school or Bus Contractor to administer, alternative
schedules may be denied or revoked.



121.54 Transportation by school districts.
(1) CiTY OPTION.

(a) Subsections (2) and (6) and s. 121.57 do not apply to pupils who reside in a school district that
contains all or part of a city unless the school they attend is located outside the city but within the
boundaries of the school district.

(b) If a school district elects under sub. (2) (c) to provide transportation for the pupils under par. (a},
state aid shall be paid in accordance with s, 121.58, and there shall be reasonable uniformity in the
transportation furnished to the pupils, whether they attend public or private schools.

(¢) Paragraph (a) does not apply to pupils who reside in a school district that contains all o partof a
1st, 2nd or 3rd class city with a population exceeding 40,000 unless transportation for the pupils is
available through a common carrier of passengers operating under s. 85.20 or ch. 194,

(2) GENERAL TRANSPORTATION.

(a) Except as provided in sub. (1), every schoo! board shall provide transportation to and from public
school for all pupils who reside in the school district 2 miles or more from the nearest public school they
are entitled to attend.

{am) In lieu of transporting a pupil who is eligible for transportation under par. (a) to and from his or
her residence, a school district may transport the pupil to or from, or both, a before- and after-school child
care program under s, 120,125, a child care program under s. 120.13 {14, or any other child care
program, family child care home, or child care provider.

(b)

1. Excepl as provided in sub. (1) or otherwise provided in this subsection, the school board of each
district operating high school grades shall provide transportation to and from the school a pupil attends
for cach pupil residing in the school district who attends any elementary grade, including kindergarten, or
high school grade at a private school located 2 miles or more from the pupil's residence, if such private
school is a scheol within whose attendance area the pupil resides and is situated within the school district
or not more than 5 miles beyond the boundaries of the school district measured along the usually traveled
roufe.

2. In lieu of transporting students under subd. 1. and paying for transportation under sub. (8) (b), an
underlying elementary school district of a union high school district may elect, by resolution adopted at
its annual or special meeting, to transport elementary school children who reside within the underlying
district and qualify for transportation under subd. 1., in vehicles owned, operated or contracted for by the
district. Once adopted, such a resolution may be repealed only upon one year's notice to the board of the
union high school district of which the underlying district is a part. An elementary school district shall
nolify the union high school district of any action under this paragraph no later than June 15 preceding the
school year in which the elementary school district's action takes effect.

3. Annually by April 1, each private schoo! shall submit its proposed attendance area for the ensuing
school year to the school board of each school district having territory within the proposed attendance
area. If a proposal is not submitted by April 1, the existing attendance area shall remain in effect for the
ensuing school year.

4. No later than May 15 in each year, each private school shall notify each school board of the
names, grade levels and locations of all pupils, if any, eligible (o have transportation provided by such



school board under this paragraph and planning to attend such private school during the forthcomin g
school term. The school board may extend the notification deadline.

Cross-reference: Sec also s. Pl 35.06, Wis. adm. code.

(¢) An annual or special meeting of a common or union high school district, or the school board of a
unified school district, may elect to provide transportation for pupils who are not required to be
transported under this section, including pupils attending public school under s, 118,145 (4)or 118.53,
Transportation may be provided for all or some of the pupils who reside in the school district to and from
the public school they are entitled to attend or the private school, within or outside the school district,
within whose attendance area they reside. If transportation is provided for less than all such pupils there
shall be reasonable uniformity in the minimum distance that pupils attending public and private schools
will be transported. Except for elementary school districts electing to furnish transportation under par. (b)
2., this paragraph does not permit a school district operating only elementary grades to provide
transportation for pupils attending private schools.

(d) A school board may provide transportation for teachers to and from public school, subject to the
same controls and limitations as apply to the transportation of pupils.

(e) Notwithstanding par. (z), if a pupil is living outside the school district in which he or she is
enrolled because the pupil's parents or guardians have joint legal custody, as defined in 5. 767.001 1s), of
the pupil, upon the request of the pupil's parent or guardian the school district shall transport the pupil to
and from an agreed-upon location within the school district.

(3) TRANSPORTATION FOR CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIES. Every school board shall provide
transportation for children with disabilities, as defined in's. 115.76 (5), to any public or private elementary
or high school, to the school operated by the Wisconsin Center for the Blind and Visually Impaired or the
school operaled by the Wisconsin Educational Services Program for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing or to
any special education program for children with disabilities sponsored by a state tax-supported institution
of higher education, including a technical college, regardless of distance, if the request for such
transportation is approved by the state superintendent. Approval shall be based on whether or ot the
child can walk to school with safety and comfort. Section 121.53 shall apply to transportation provided
under this subsection.

(4) SUMMER CLASS TRANSPORTATION. A school board may provide transportation for pupils
residing in the school district and attending summer classes. If the school board provides transportation
for less than all pupils, there shall be reasonable uniformity in the minimum and maximum distances
pupils are transported,

(5) TRANSPORTATION TO TECHNICAL COLLEGES. The school board of a district operating high
school grades may provide for the transportation or board and lodging of residents of the school district
attending technical colleges outside the school district who are not high school graduates, are less than 20
years of age and attend such colleges full time. The school board of such a district may also provide
transportation for residents of the district participating in vocational education programs organized
cooperatively between school districts under s, 66.0301. The school district shall be paid state aid for such
transportation or board and lodging in accordance with s. 121.58. This subsection does not apply if the
distance between a pupil's home and the technical college along the usually traveled public highway is
more than 15 miles, unless the pupil resides on an approved bus route or board and lodging are provided.



(6) TRANSPORTATION IN SPECIAL CASES, The school board of a district operating high school grades
which, under s. 121.78 (2) (a}, must permit a pupil to attend high schoof outside the schoo! district shall
provide transportation for such pupil if the pupil resides 2 or more miles from the high schocel that the
pupil attends.

(7) TRANSPORTATION FOR EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES.

(a) A school board may provide transportation for pupils attending public or private schools, their
parents or guardians, authorized chaperones, school officers, faculty and employees and school doctors,
dentists and nurses in connection with any extracurricular activity of the public or private school, such as
a school athletic contest, school game, after school practice, late activity, school outing or school field trip
or any other similar trip when:

1. A school bus or motor bus or a motor vehicle under s, 121.555 (1) (a) is used and such
transportation is under the immediate supervision of a competent adult.

2. A school operated by the school district or the private school has an actual interest in the safety
and welfare of the children transported to the activity;

4. The school principal or other person with comparable authority authorizes such use.

{h)

1. Tf transportation is provided to pupils and other persons in connection with any extracurricular
activity of a public school under par. (a), the school board may make a charge for such transportation, to
be paid by the persons transported, sufficient to reimburse it for the cost of providing the transportation. If
transportation is provided to pupils and other persons in connection with any extracurricular activity of a
private school under par. (x), the school board shall make a charge for such (ransportation, to be paid by
the private school or the persons transported, sufficient to reimburse it for the cost of providing the
transportation,

2. The school board may contract under s. 121.52 (2) (b) for transportation authorized under par. (&)
for pupils attending public schools. The school board may authorize a charge for the transportation, to be
paid by the persons transported, sufficient to make reimbursement for the cost of providing the
transportation.

(8) PAYMENT OF TRANSPORTATION COSTS.

(a) The cost of providing transportation for pupils under subs. (1} to (6) and s. 121.57 shall be paid by
the school district in which they reside, and no part of such cost may be charged to the pupils or their
parenis or guardians.

(b) At the end of the schoel term, every union high school district shall submit to each of its
underlying school districls operating only elementary grades a certified statement of the actual cost for the
school year, less the amount to be paid for such pupils for that school year under s. 121.58 (2}, of
transporting the private school pupils residing in the underlying school district under sub. (2) (5). On or
before June 30 in each year each underlying school district shall reimburse the union high school district
for the net cost of transporting its resident private school pupils as so reported in the statement,

{9) TRANSPORTATION IN AREAS OF UNUSUAL HAZARDS,

(a) In school districts in which unusual hazards exist for pupils in walking to and from the school
where they are enrolled, the school board shall develop a plan which shall show by map and explanation
the nature of the unusual hazards to pupil travel and propose a plan of transportation if such transportation



is necessary, which will provide proper safeguards for the school attendance of such pupils. Copies of the
plan shall be filed with the sheriff of the county in which the principal office of the schoo! district is
located. The sheriff shall review the plan and may make suggestions for revision deemed appropriate. The
sheriff shall investigate the site and plan and make a determination as to whether unusual hazards exist
which cannot be corrected by local government and shall report the findings in writing to the state
superintendent and the school board concerned. Within 60, but not less than 30, days from the day on
which the state superintendent receives the sheriff's report, the state superintendent shall determine
whether unusual hazards to pupil travel exist and whether the plan provides proper safeguards for such
pupils. If the state superintendent makes findings which support the plan and the determination that
unusual hazards exist which seriously jeopardize the safety of the pupils in their travel to and from school
the school board shall put the plan into effect and state aid shall be paid under s. 121.58 (2} (c) for any
transportation of pupils under this subsection. Any city, village or town may reimburse, in whole or in
part, a school district for costs incurred in providing transportation under this subsection for pupils who
reside in the city, village or town.

H

(am) Any person aggrieved by the failure of a school board to file a plan with the sheriff as provided
in par. (a) may notify the schoo! board in writing that an area of unusual hazard exists. The school board
shall reply to the aggrieved person in writing within 30 days of receipt of the aggrieved person's notice,
The school board shall send a copy of the board's reply to the sheriff of the county in which the principal
oifice of the school district is located and to the state superintendent, Upon receipt of the school board's
reply, the aggrieved person may request a hearing before the state superintendent for a determination as to
whether an area of unusual hazard exists. If the state superintendent determines that an area of unusual
hazard exists, the state superintendent shall direct the school board to proceed as provided in par. (z).

(b) Within 30 days after the sheriff's report is received by the state superintendent, any aggrieved
person may request a hearing before the state superintendent on the determination by the sheriff and on
the plan. After such hearing, the state superintendent shall proceed as provided in par. (a).

(¢) The state superintendent and the department of transportation shall establish a definition of
"unusual hazards" and "area of unusual hazards" for the implementation of this subsection. Such
definition shall be promulgated, as a rule, by the state superintendent.

Cross-reference: Sce also ch, Pl 7, Wis. adm. code.

(10) ATTENDANCE IN NONRESIDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT. Subject to s, 118.51 {14} (a) 2., a school
board may elect to provide transportation, including transportation to and from summer classes, for
nonresident pupils who are attending public school in the school district under s. 118.51 or 121.84 {(4), or
its resident pupils who are attending public school in another school district under s. 118.51 or 121.84 (4,
or both, except that a school board may not provide transportation under this subsection for a nonresident
pupil to or from a location within the boundaries of the school district in which the pupil resides unless
the school board of that school district approves. ‘

History: 1971 ¢. 162; 1973 ¢, 89, 107,333; 1975 . 60, 392, 421, 1977 ¢. 227,252, 418; 1981 . 2005, 2202 (51) (&) 1983 a. 27,
175, 1985 a. 29 5. 3202 (43); 1985 o, 218, 225, 240; 1993 &, 309, 452; 1995 3. 27 5, 9145 {13; 1995 a. 439; 1997 5, 27, 113, 164;
1999 0.9, 117; 1999 2, 150 s, 672; 2007 a. 57; 2005 a, 68, 224; 2009 a. 185 2013 a. 20,

Sections 121.51 (4) [now 121.51 (1)] and 121.54 (2) (b) 1., as enacted in 1969, are constitutional. Vanko v. Kahl, 52 Wis, 2d 200,
188 N.W.2d 460 (1971).



Exceptions to the mandatory provision of transportation should be narrowly construed. The exception for children who "reside in
cities" should be confined to its common and approved usage. Morrissette v. DeZonia, 63 Wis, 2d 476, 217 N.W.2d 377 (1974),

Although a private school was only 127 feet beyond the 5-mile limit of sub. {2) (b} 1., stalutory construction was not available (o
extend the limit. Young v. Mukwonago Board of Education, 74 Wis. Zd 144, 246 N.W.2d 230 (1976).

A public school board's refusal to transport parochial pupils during a public school vacation violated sub, {2) (b) 1. Hahner v.
Wisconsin Rapids Board of Education, 89 Wis, 2¢ 180, 278 N.W.2d 474 (Ct. App. 1979).

Common carrier passenger service need not be available to all city pupils for schoel board to possess the option under sub. (1). The
“reasonable uniformity" requirement was directed at the distance that pupils are transpotied, not at the means of transportation
that is chosen, St. John Vianney School v. Janesville Board of Educatior, 114 Wis. 2d 140, 336 N.W.2d 387 (Ct. App. 1983).

Students within a private school's attendance area under s, 121.51 (1) were entitled to transportation under sub, (2) (b) 1. although
the campus they attended was not within the public school's 5-mile transportation radius, but another campus to which they could
be transported was. Providence Catholic Schﬁol v. Bristol School District No, 1, 231 Wis. 2d 159, 665 N.W.2d 238 (Ct. App.
1999), 98-3390.

Reading sub. (2) (b} 2. with s, 121,55, elementary schools are not restricted to providing transportation vehicles owned, operated, or
contracted for by the district, but they also have the alternatives available under s. 121.55. Providence Catholic Scheol v. Bristol
Schoal District No. 1, 231 Wis. 2d 159, 605 N.W.2d 238 {Ct. App. 1999), 98-3390,

Transportation must be on a reasonably uniform basis to all children attending either public or private schools. 61 Atty. Gen. 240.

Students may have bus riding privileges suspended without being suspended or expetled from school. However, both public and
private school students must be afforded due process under s, 120,13 (1) before such a suspension can tzke place. 63 Alty. Gen,
526.

A public school district did not violate the equal protection clause of the U.S. constitution by refusing to bus the students of charter
school created under s. 118,20 (2r) located within ils geographical boundaries. Racine Charter One, Inc. v, Racine Unified School
District, 424 F.3d 677 (2005).

City school busing policies adopted pursuant to subs. (1) and (2) (b) 1. were without rational ba.sis and viclaled the equal protection
rights of city resident private school students who resided more than 2 miles from the school but were denied transportation
solely because the schoo!l was located 400 feet outside the city and school district boundaries. Deutsch v, Teel, 200 F, Supp. 598
(1975).

Sub. (2) (b) 1. does not deny equal protection to students attending parochial school beyond 5-mile limit. O'Connel v. Kniskern, 484
E. Supp. 896 (1980).

121.545 Additional transportation.

(1) The parent or guardian of a pupil wha attends a public or private school and who is niot required
to be transported under s. 121.54 may contract with the school board of the district for transportation
under this subsection. The school board of the district may provide transportation under this subsection to
a pupil not required to be transported under s. 121.54, if requested to do so by the parent or guardian of
the pupil. The school board may charge a fee for the cost of providing transportation under this subsection
and may waive the fee or any portion of the fee for any person who is unable to pay the fee. State aid shall
not be provided for transportation under this subsection,

(2) A school board may provide transportation for children residing in the school district whom the
school district is not required to transport under s. 121.54 to or from, or both, a before- and after-school
child care program under s. 120.125, a prekindergarten class under s, 120,13 (13), a child care program
under s. 120.13 (14}, or any other child care program, family child care home, child care provider, or
prekindergarten class. The school board may charge a fee for the cost of providing such transportation.



The school board may waive the fee or any portion of the fee for any person who is unable to pay tl

e fee.
State aid shall not be provided for transportation under this subsection,



340 Fair Street
Evangville, W1 33536
Phone: (608) 882-5224
Fax:  (608)882-6564

Evansville

Community School District

MEMORANDUM

To: Evansville Board of Education
From: Doreen Treuden, Business Manager
Re:  2016-2017 Staff Proposal

Date: February 16, 2016

Attached you will find documents showing current staff levels for 2015-16 and proposed
staffing levels for 2016-17. Following Board approval in March, the additional positions
will be included in the budget for 2016-17.



Administrative Team Recommended Staffing Priorities for 2016-2017

Staffing Priorities and Rationale:

1. Administrative Assistant at LLE/TRIS; 1.0 FTE
Rationale: Safety and security; 4K; equity of support for all administrators; potential need
for summer school support, decreases clerical work by administrator so that the
administrators can focus on the most important work of supporting student achievement

2. Instructional Coaches - Four Phases
Phase 1 —2016-2017, K-5 1.0 FTE
Rationale; Improve instructional practices through teacher support

3. HS Choir -.17 FTE
Rationale: Retention of staff, ability to offer more courses

4. HS School Counselor - .5 FTE
Rationale: Increased demand of student assessment; mental health issues; and ACP
{Academic Counseling Programming)



TEACHING STAFF PROPOSAL

Current | Proposed
2015-2016|2016-2017] Change
FTE FTE FTE

Agriculture Teacher 1.00 1.00
Alternative Education Teacher 1.00 1.00
Art Teacher 4.00 4.00
Business Education Teacher 3.00 3.00
Eariy Childhood Teacher 2.00 2.00
English Teacher 4.00 4.00
ESL Teacher 2.00 2.00
FACE Education Teacher 2.00 2.00
G/T Teacher 1.00 1.00
G/T/Resource/Reading Teacher 1.00 1.00
HS/MS Literacy/Technology Learning Integration Teacher 1.00 1.00

Instructional Coach 0.00 1.00 1.00
Instrumental Music Teacher 1.00 1.00
K-12 Social Worker 1.00 1.00
Language Arts Teacher 3.00 3.00
Language Arts Teacher/Literacy Coach 1.00 1.00
Library Media Specialist 2.00 2.00
Mathematics Teacher 8.00 8.00

Music Teacher 4,68 4.85 0.17
Occupational Therapist 2.00 2.00
Physical Education Teacher 3.00 3.00
Physical Education/Health Teacher 5.00 5.00
Physical Therapist 1.00 1.00
Reading Specialist 2.00 2.00
Reading/G&T Teacher 1.00 1.00
Resource/Reading Teacher 1.00 1.00

School Counselor 4.50 5.00 0.50
School Nurse 1.00 1.00
School Psychologist 2.00 2.00
Science Teacher 7.00 7.00
Social Studies Teacher 6.50 6.50
Spanish Teacher 4.00 4.00
Special Education Teacher 15.00 15.00
Speech/Language Pathologist 3.00 3.00
Teacher 40.00 40.00
Technology Education Teacher 3.00 3.00
143.68 145.35

Feb-16

1.67




151a T HOLD3HIA JILTTHLY SH T N SOLLOToY

SIAl z SN-ONITLSTHM SH T HOSIAQY SSV1D HOINAI/INOYd

SIA z HOYOD SN TIVGAITIOA SH F4 %05-HIVOD ALISHYA NOd WOd

SIN £ HOVGD SIN MOWHL SH F4 %05 - HOV02 Al NOd NOd

SIN F4 %045 - HOSIATGY TIONNOD LNIANLS SiAl SH T JOSIAQY ALIIDOS HONOH TYNOIIYN

T S 0 avIdINATO FDONIIDS SIN SH T SH-YGLZIHIA TYIO0A TVIISNIN
SN T HOV0D 1MO4E ZIND SIN SH 1 HOLIFHIT TYIANHIAL IVIISOIN

SN F4 %05 - 1JAT04d ALINMIWINOD Tva01D SH 1 SH HOLJ3YIQ IVHLSTIHINO TvISNIA

SN 4 %085 - SW-40SIAGY SHSNIYOA SH 1 HOLYAYIA IVDISNIN

S z HOYOD SN 1Tva1004 SH T WY3LHIYIN

S T SIN-HIOHD - SH 1 4N12 I9YITN HBIH

SW 7 HOV0D SN STHIS T1ve.13NSve - SH T LOArO"d ALINNININGD 18015

SN z %05- HOV0D S SA0E TIvaLTisva SH z %05 - VJI43INY 40 SYIAYIT SSANISNG UL

S T HOVCD SN SADE TTvaLlisyd SH T SH-HOSIATY SHSNIHOL

SN T SN ANvd SH T HOVO2 AvIH TIVE1004

- LN T HOSIAQY 2NT1D IINIIDS SIHL SH T HOVOD NYWHSTYd 11v¥d.1004
INI T NOISStOYad SH T %S - HOVOD HIAYITIATHD TIva1004

INI T Jisn SH 4 %05 - HOVOD LNYLSISSY T1va.1004

LN T SYILNAH AYOLSIH 3QVHS HIY SH £ HIVOD LNVISISSY TIva1004

SH T HOVOD AVIH SNILSTUM SH T HOVOD VIAVYd

SH T (AN HOWOD INVLSISSY DNEILSTHM SH T LINYISISSY ViNYYa

SH T STHID ALISHVA TIYIATTION SH T HIVOD ALISHWA AYLNNOD S504D

SH 1 HOVOD NYINHSTYA STHID TIVEAITION SH T HOVOD INYLSISSY AYLNNOD SSOUD

SH T (Ar} HOYOD LNVISISSY 1IvEATTION SH T SH-HIOHD

SH T HOVOD aVaH MIJvdL SH T HIVOD SADE ALISHVA TIvELINSve

SH z %0% - HOVOD INVISISSY JIvHL $H T HOVOD NYWHSIHd STH1D T19a.LINSYe

SH T HIVOD LNVLSISSY MOVHL SH T HOVOD NYIWHS3Yd SAOD T1vd.LIiSvE

SH T HOSIAQY TINMOD INIANLS SH T {AF) HOVOD SAO9 LNVISISSY 1VaLTISYE

SH T HOVOD Al TIVELIOS SH T HOVOD ALISUVYA STUID 1TVaLINSVE

SH T avaH T1v8L40S SH i HIVOD Al STHID 1TvEL13Nsve

SH T STHID AT HIDD0S SH T 9595 - HOVOD 43AVaTY3IHD TIvaLoisvd

SH T SAQE ATY¥IAI005 SH T HOYOD ALISHVA TIvE3svd

SH T HOVGD ALISUYA STHID HIDD0S SH T {Al) HOVOD INVLSISSY TIvEIsYa

SH T HOVOD ALISYVA SADS 430008 $H T SH ¥O1D38IC ANVE

T SH o HOLYNIQHOO?D 103r0dd 4OINIS SH ERE] T JISNN 53

SADNVHD |[DNIdTIng AHLALLDY SIONVHI | oniaiing ALIALLDY
LT0Z-9T0Z LIGZ-9T0T
SNOILIS0d DNHAVIS v 1noiddnd vaIxa/od




EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Insurance Committee Minutes

The Insurance Committee meeting was held on Monday, January 18, 2016, at 5:30 pm in the
District Board and Training Center.

Appoint Note Taker
Greg Kuelz offered to take the minutes.

Attendance

Members in attendance: Doreen Treuden, Deb Arnold, Mandj Firgens, Deb Fritz, Darlene
Gallman, Greg Kuelz, Jolene Hammond, Rin Kundert, Kelly Mosher, Jerry Roth, Sandi Spanton
Nelson, and Melissa Whitmore. Absent: Mason Braunschweig and Lisa Christensen.

Approve Minutes
Motion by Mr. Roth, seconded by Ms. Mosher, moved to approve the November 23, 2015,
minutes as amended. Motion carried, voice vote.

Review Health Savings Accounts

Mr. Kuelz reminded the group that we are in the planning phase where we are looking for
information on potential plan design options to consider. Since at the November 23, 2015,
meeting the Committee indicated interest in learning more about HSA’s, this was a primary
agenda item for this meeting. Mr. Kuelz introduced Ben Irwin to the Committee. Mr. Irwin
shared insight from Parkview’s switch to an HSA plan design earlier this school year. Mr. Irwin
stressed the need for early education and communication to the staff on how the plan design
operates. The group also discussed some of the challenges from the early months of an HSA
when out of pocket expenses can be larger than HSA contributions available. He also indicated
that some of the transitional issues they faced could have been lessened with better and earlier
staff education.

Cash in Lieu

Mr. Kuelz shared and explained a recent delay in the way the cash in lieu contributions must be
reported to the IRS and the impact it has on ACA penalties. Ms. Treuden shared that the cash in
lieu offering is fraught with other issues and may be reduced or eliminated in future yearsin
order to avoid problems. This topic will be one of the variables the group will consider for
modification as the health insurance renewal approaches.

Review ACA
Mr. Kuelz updated the Committee on the delay in the deadline for the District to file forms 1095

and 1094. Employees will still be able to file personal income taxes without the forms.

Next Meeting Date
February 1, 2016, at 5:30 pm.

Page 1 of2



Next Meeting Agenda

The next meeting will be to learn the School Board’s financial expectation for the Committee
for this renewal. After that awarenessthe Committee will discuss and prioritize options to
modify the Dean renewal based on the options discussed and considered.

Adjournment
Mr. Roth moved, Ms. Treuden, seconded to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried, voice vote.
Meeting adjourned at 7:00 pm.

Submitted by Greg Kuelz, AFG Consultant Approved: 2/1/16

Page 2 of 2



EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Food Service Employee Compensation Committee Minutes

The meeting of the Food Service Employee Compensation Committee took place on Monday,
January 11, 2016, at 1:48 pm, in the District Office Conference Room.

Attendance
Members present: Jeannie Nelson, John Rasmussen, Jerry Roth, Marcia Scofield, Rebecka
Selmer, Doreen Treuden, and Liz Uher.

Approve October 27 and December 1, 2015 Minutes
Motion by Mr. Rasmussen, seconded by Ms. Uher, moved to approve the October 27 and
December 1, 2015, minutes as presented. Motion carried, voice vote.

Review/Revise Job Descriptions
Ms. Treuden shared a draft job description for a Cook 1. Job description reviewed, discussed,
and suggested changes to be made. Job description to be reviewed at next meeting.

Set Future Meeting Date and Agenda
The next meeting will be Monday, February 8, 2016 at 1:45 pm. Agenda items: review/revise
job descriptions.

Adjourn

Motion by Ms. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Scofield, moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion
carried, voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 2:38 pm.

Submitted by Ms. Treuden, Business Manager Approved: 2/8/16



EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Custodians and Cleaners Employee Compensation Committee Minutes

The meeting of the Custodians and Cleaners Employee Compensation Committee took place on
Monday, January 11, 2016, at 2:49 pm, in the District Office Conference Room.

Attendance
Members present: Steve Maloney, John Rasmussen, Jerry Roth, Steve Scherber, Steve Shulta,
Doreen Treuden, Kevin Wells, and Russell Hall.

Approve October 27 and December 1, 2015, Minutes
Motion by Mr. Scherber, seconded by Mr. Maloney, moved to approve the October 27 and
December 1, 2015, minutes as presented. Motion carried, voice vote.

Review/Revised Job Descriptions
Ms. Treuden shared a draft job description for a cleaner. Job description reviewed, discussed,
and suggested changes to be made. Job description to be reviewed at next meeting.

Set Future Meeting Date and Agenda
The next meeting will be Monday, February 8, 2016, at 2:45 pm. Agenda items: review/revise
job descriptions.

Adjourn

Motion by Mr. Hall, seconded by Ms. Scherber, moved to adjourn the meeting. Mation carried,
voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 3:41 pm.

Submitted by Ms. Treuden, Business Manager Approved: 2/8/16



91/8¢/1

SapwLeD 01 sadueyd pasodoud 7 Arenuef

duipeay pug
S3AA aul|peap 93UeYD - UOIIEJION 1USWaIIRY ‘V 108 ‘€S 9d]  paniia) - ¢ pled Aegy 01
ON o8ensue] a8ueyd - sjBURG paygman -7 O|nyYas aunsUYD| 68
JAEDT PUB JUIWISABBIDY ‘|BUUOSIBd YIIS ‘Q "Ied ‘Z0°2 ‘TS 34 slappay Aef 83(
ON [le @BueYD - SAB(] |BUOSISd MDIS - 202 £ U0I128S ‘05 "3d Pyl -7 Fasquanjonay Ayze) L
S3A AUEG a4l palillel -2 Q[[NY2S JUISIYD| € T T
01 SARP Y215 JO J3qWINU Ppe - jueg 2ARDT YIS ‘S0'8 ‘67 "Sd siappay Aer sag
1P[SIYIS sule)
ON S3A
aleq uoiy pieog aduey) e 01 # uonras/ucioas/esed gH3 1ied 9H3 Wa04 U0 sweN i#

UO1}E3PUBLULLIOITY
wo) gH 9sAojdwa

DNILITN FTLLININOD ‘L AYVANYT INOYHd SIONVHDI d3s0doud (gH3) XOOIaNVYH IIA0dING




91/8Z/1

sawwod o} sadueyd pasodoud 7 Azenuer

a8ensue| Apog 3yl Ul pJemIo) ALIED 10U pIp INg JB3A [00YIs 158 UONI3S SIY1 Ul $9[U1 2yt pasdueyd Hoddnsg - ¢ pdeo epuii
pey am - 3si|epads eleq pue AJojouysa] Jo B3 ppe - ) pue °g 'V ‘€0°TT ‘TT U0noss ‘79 ‘84
UESTETERINE] )
DIADHRO5OBTRS—potaRt suowded| ponpies—2 sioppeY-Aefoog| IF
S3A Sullpeap 93UBYD - UOIIEDYIION JUSWBINRY ‘V T0'8 ‘€S '8d Palplel - ¢ 1pted Aen| 0t
ON _ s3endue| sdueyd - syysuag|  papnied- ¢ O[INYas dulsUYD| 6 ‘8
IAEDT PUR JUDUIDARRIIY ‘[BUUOSIE IS ‘G “Jed ‘T0°L ‘TS "3d ‘sisppay Aef a3
ON e 83ueyo - sAeq |BUOSIad/IIS - 7O/ £ UOIIISS ‘05 ‘Bd|  palpmey - 7 Z1oquanppnay Ayzed| £
SHAYISDERSID| 5
sioppegheroet| §
WPty
SIA jueq ayl payien -z slappay Aeroaq| 7
01 SABP 3215 JO J3QUWINU PPE - JUBg aARa] 32IS ‘90°8 ‘67 'S4
S3A AUBQ Yl  paylued - ¢ Olnyds sulsLYdt €°T
01 SABD XIS 10 JaqUINU ppe - jueq aAeaT }2IS ‘60" ‘67 'Sd Ip1e1yas suuo)
ON S3IA
a@leq uoly pieog a3uey) jelAl 03 # Uolas/uonoas/ased gHI Hed gH3 W04 U0 aenN #

UOIEBPUILILLIOIDY
wo) gH s3hojdwig

ONILIFN FILLIAINOD ‘L AHYNNVI INOY4 STIONVHD A3SOd0OUd (gHI) XOOIANVYH IIA0TdING




Appendix A Board Approved. 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbock change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Corine Schieldt
Sick Leave Bank

Employee Handbook Part:

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: pg 29’805

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

"Employeas shall indicale In writing annually on & form provided by Lhe Districl with the firat paychack in May if they wish 1o contribute a sick or parsonal day ta the
Sick Leave Bank.”

CHANGE TO: "..to soniributa up o five sick or personal days o the Sick Leave Bank. Also, employess may give back lo the Sick Leave Bank any unused days
received from the Sick Leava Bank,

The revision furthers the Mission by allowing slaff access lo resources that allow them to focus on self sa that they can be effective when they are in the clagsroom
wilh studenls.

ddokkakckkkk ok kkkkkkkok fh ko hkok ok Rk khk Rk ok kb kR sk ko ok ok

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: / /. / § A0yt n=

g‘ﬂ)\ﬂyae, leave o;oﬂ‘t:MS — revieo alf

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES __ or NO ___: Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: {f\O'L @_ﬁ)(e !LO ()_C\_[wu}ﬁj
Legal Impact: N}SF Auwlay ¢ 0}% OIM\ gm«:’i)m//

HR/handbockapproved/suggested revisions form 5/27/15



Appendix A " Board Approvad: 2/26/14
' Revised: 11/12/14
lllll Revised; 5/27/15

“TEVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRIET s
EMIPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE i
Effectiveﬂ L‘vaion Bqar_d Approval July J_,Qf Each Year

———=—-If-you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee . = .. ... .
group/representative to camplete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is '
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District

Office, prior 1o each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggestéd changes submitied by employee grotps during ~
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forware
recommendations to the Board of Education, The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes guarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Dee Jay Redders
Sick Leave Bank
p. 29, 8.05

Employee Handbook Part:

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #:

Suggested Ravision:
How This.Revision Furthers the Mission of the District {stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

"Employees shall Indicate [n writing annuaily on a ferm provided by the District with the first paycheck in May If thay wish fo
contribute a slek or personal day to the Slck Leave Bank.”

CHANGE TO: “..to contribute up to five sick or personal days to the Sick |eave Bank."

The revision furthers the Misslon by aliowing staff access to resources thaf allow them io focus on self so that thay can be
effective when they are in the classroom with students.

LR R L EE R L LR L I eI I RS TP T

‘ DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form recelved: /CQ~/2)7’/D JLr

Reviero all 2np lwm {muﬁ?_ o]oJ'LM
23Vl -2 Miceor# | ancl”’l_??{/anjuggyﬁ

‘Board of Education Approval of Change: YES ___ or NO _ . Action Date

.C-ostlmpactand/—\mount: nD‘\L C‘Jab \;D (’,Cklt,w%»
.Leg'allmpact: V\O& ol v d‘g’ CM\IT 1;%’0«3(9['

He/handbockapproved/suggested tevlsions form 5/17/15




Appendix A ' Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the schoo! year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Employee/School Board Member Name: ChﬂStlne SChUHO
Sick Leave Bank

Employee Handbook Part:

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: pg 29, 805

Suggested Revision:

How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District {stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

"Employees shall inclicate in writing annually on a form pravided by tha Distiict with the first paycheck In May i thay wish fo cantribute a sick or personal day to the Sick
Leave Bank."

Change to "...to cantibute up to five sick or persanal days to the Sick Leave Bank. Also, amployees may give back ta tha Sick |eave Bark any unused days recalved
from the Sick Laave Bank"

This ravision furlhers the Mission by allowing staff access lo resources thal allow them te facus on sslf-care when needed so Ihat they can be effective when they ara in
the classroom wilh students.

dedckkdkckdkkok R dck Rk Rk ko dkkkockok kR Rk k ko ok Rk kR kR R kR kg

) DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: /2«/5‘—/5 L f

Review all 2rplog 2o fende opo%d

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES___ or NO ___; Action Date
Cost Impact and Amount: h(j“(’ ﬂb(e v[—D (‘ﬁu\m[ oA,
Legal Impact: f\O" TSI VA fjé" (LI’\M' [m’ﬂa‘fzf/

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 5/27/15

©



Certified Staff
Section 8 — Sick Leave

8.05 Sick Leave Bank
A. Donation of Days: Employees shall indicate in writing annually on a form provided
by the District with the first paycheck in May if they wish to contribute a sick or
personal leave day to the Sick Leave Bank. The donation form must be returned to the
District business office no later than May 30.

1. All donations of days are voluntary and permanent,
2. Donated days will be credited to the Sick Leave Bank effective July 1.

3. Days deposited by part-time employees shall be credited on a pro-rated basis of
the employee’s part-time assignment or contract.

- 4. An annual accounting of the days available in the Sick Leave Bank will be given
to the Employee Group by the District Office by August 1.

5. The Sick Leave Bank shall have a maximum of two hundred fifty (250) days

available at the beginning of any school year. Donations will be declined when
the maximum is at two hundred fifty (250) days.

D-@-G



Appendix A Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Oifice, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Employee/Schoo! Board Member Name: Cathy KrUCkenberg
Insurance and leave

Employee Handbook Part:
Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: page 50’ Seot]on 7 #702

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District {stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

See attached sheet.

ook ok s ok sk ook sk ok ook ok K ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok o oK S ok ok o o o ok R o ok ok ok ke R o s ok

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: /2—/%/2) S

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES __ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: MKQW%M 6&0}9— )’\;‘Club M%QLO n{-@ (}YUOL pmpoggﬂ
Legal Impact: YL a,‘%iqc,%e,ﬂ CLE?'Y‘QQ

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 5/271/15




Suggested handbook revision submitted by Cathy Kruckenberg

This revision will help improve the climate and moral of teachers in the Evansville School District by
allowing teachers more time to attend personal, community and family events that occur during the

school year. The increase in moral of teachers will result in 2 more positive learning environment for all
students.

The revision would read as follows: Teachers may be absent for personal or illness/injury for up to 11
days per year based upon years of service.

Years of Service Sick days Personal days
0-4 8 3

5-9 7 4

10-14 6 5

15-19 5 6

20-24 4 7

25-29 3 | 8

30-34 2 9

35+ 1 10

7



Plans

gy Andrew T. Phillips and Daniel S. Welytok, Attorneys, von Briesen & Roper, s.c.

% Ublic employers in Wisconsin
Y have traditionally provided

: employees with some sort of
paid leave program whereby employees
would receive salary continuation on
days when an employée was il, on .
vacation, or celebrating a holiday. In
many.cases, public employers would
allow employees to “bank” unused
leave time for futuré use. In some
cases, employees would be granted
the privilege of converting unused
leave time to cash or contributing
the financial value of the time to an
extended health coverage benefit upon
retirement.

Many public employers are aware

of the tax cohcept of “constructive

receipt” of incoma for an employee. In

simple terms, federal tax law requires

an employer to tréat payments made

10 an employee's “bank” as income

- for tax purposes if the employer also

provides the employee with an option
to receive the contribution as cash.

For example, if an employer provides

- a retiring employee with a current
option to apply her sick leave bank to
health insurance premiums (pre-tax)
or receive the value of the bank in
cash, the employee is in “constructive
receipt” of the money that is paid
for health insurance premiums and
the contribution is a taxable event -
meaning it results in the emplovee
being taxed on the valug of the leave -
even though the employee received no
actual money.

In recent years, public employers have
questioned the administrative and
finangial viability of the traditional

~ave plans, which separate leave
sntitlements into various categories
~ vacation, sick, holiday, personal,
bereavement, etc. Many public
employers began transitioning to a paid
time off (PTO) plan whereby employees
were aliotted a specific number of days
away from work without regard to the
reason for the absence. But even with
the transition to PTO, public employers
typically continued to allow employees
to contribute to a “bank” of unused
hours that could be converted to cash
or some other benefit upon separaticn
of employment or retirement.

2011 Wisconsin Act 10 provided

a significant opportunity for public
employers to continue to evaluate
changes to their traditional leave
plans as changes to those plans
are.no longer a mandatory subject
of collective bargaining. As a result,
the past four (4) years have seen a
nroliferation of PTO plans implemented
.cross the state as public employers
attempt to create administrative and
financial efficiency.

The constructive receipt doctrine is
taking on renewed significance as
public employers have created naw
conversion options for “extended
leave,” retirement accounts, health
insurance continuation, and the
like, some of which have at least a
limited “cash cut” option. But even
in situations where tha cash option
is limited or capped, the IRS is clear
that the “constructive receipt” rule will
continue to apply.

The IRS is currently conducting an
initiative focusing on benefits, and
accordingly is increasing its scrutiny
of public employer PTO and benefit
plans. IRS agents are reviewing
employer handbooks and policies
made available on county, municipal,
and school websites as one method
of determining whether to initiate a
formal audit into a public emplover’s
benefits practices. Therefore,

we recommend that counties,

34 December 2015  Taking Care of Business + WASBO.com

A

drew T.

Phillips Welytok

municipalities, schools, and other loca]
governmental entitiss immediately
review their leave or PTO plans to
insure that constructive receipt is not
an issue and to determine compliance
with the Internal Revenue Code. As

is true with most matters relatin‘g to

RS &nforcement, interpretation and

‘@pplication of federal tax 1aw 1o &Ry~
‘§pecific circumstance can bé tricky and
counsel should be consuTted T gensure
hat the public employer is placed in
THe best possile position if an audit is
forthcoming. &

R e ey ]

if you have any questions about this article,
contact Andrew at aphillips@vonbriesen.com
or Daniel at dwelytok@vonbrissen.com.

von Briesen & Roper Law Update is a
periodic publication of von Briesen & Roper,
s.¢. ltis intended for general information
purposes and highlights recent changes
and developments in the legal area. This
publication does not constitute legal advies,
and the reader should consult legal counsel
to determine how this information applies to
any specific sftuation.

@é Soy oand do
sometiving
positine that
sUasflon;
doesn't foke
oy broins fo
comlainm .

~ Robert A. Cook

g



Certified Staff
Section 7 — Insurance and Teave

7.02  Sick, Personal, Bereavement, and Leave Benefits

—

Refer to Policy 529.1 - Family & Medical Leave
A. Sick/Personal/Business:

1. Teachers may be absent for personal illness or injury up to eleven (11) days per

year. Three (3) of these days may be used each year for personal or business
leave, Unless an emergency situation prevails, a Teachers On Call (T.0.C)
request for a personal day(s) must be submitted at least forty-eight (48) hours
prior to using personal time. Personal days may not be used on the first day of
school, during the last two (2) weeks of the school year, or to extend vacation or
holidays except with prior approval of the District Administrator or designee.

. Ininstances of emergency situations, when prior approval cannot be obtained, the

teacher shall submit a statement to the District Administrator or designee who
shall then determine whether a personal day may be used.

. If such days are not taken, they will accumnulate each year as sick leave.

. The full allowance for sick leave for the school year will be credited at the

beginning of the school term on the first day of school. Unused sick leave will be
credited to each teacher’s reserve, which may accumulate to one hundred ten
(110) days at the end of the school year.

If a teacher fails to complete the full term of the contract for reasons other than
illness, such leave may be pro-rated on the basis of one (1) day per month of the
time in service beginning with September.

. In the case where an employee qualifies for long-term disability, the District shall

continue to pay teacher group health, hospitalization insurance provided the
policy continues to have waiver of premium, for the duration of the annual
contract after sick leave has been exhausted. The provisions stated in Part II,
Section 7, number #13 of this handbook do not apply (they are exclusive to child-
rearing/maternity leave). If the teacher fails to retumn to duty the following school
year, a partial repayment of health and dental insurance premiums will be
required. The amount due will be one-half (14) of the full cost of health and
dental insurance premiums paid after FMLA provisions, if applicable, have been
exhausted. The Board has the discretion to waive all or part of the repayment of
premiums if, in the Board’s judgment, the termination is beyond the teacher’s
control.

. Any employee covered by long term disability insurance shall not be eligible to

claim sick Ieave pay at such time as the employee becomes eligible for LTD
benefits.

D



10.

11.

12.

13.

For teachers hired before July 1%, 2013, accrued sick time up to a limit of 880
hours shall be paid out at $12.50 per hour at the time of retirement. Teachers with
at least twenty (20) years of service in the District may accumulate and be paid
for up to 968 hours payable upon retirement. Payment will be made into a non-
elective TSA according to the terms of the District 403b plan.

Sick or personal or business time as outlined in this section shall be administered
on an hourly basis of an eight (8) hour day.

Sick or personal or business time of less than one hundred twenty (120) minutes
will not be charged to sick or personal or business or funeral or bereavement leave
if a substitute is not required.

The District agrees that no deduction for benefits will be required for up to two
(2) days of non-paid leave in a contract year. Benefits will continue to be paid by
the District.

If an employee takes more than two (2) non-paid leave days in a contract year, the
District will deduct from the employee’s payroll an amount per day determined by
the following formula: Formula — divide the annual cost of the benefit by 260
days, multiply the resulting amount times the number of non-paid leave days in
excess of two (2), and the result will be the total amount to be deducted for
benefits. For example, if the health insurance annual premium is $18,180 divided
by 260 days the amount will be approximately $70 per day for employees with the
family health plan.

All requests for unpaid leave must be approved by the District Administrator or
his/her designee.



Appendix A Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board ApprovalJuly 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please wark with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Randbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committes Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year,

Employee/School Board Member Name; Dee ‘Jay Redders
Insurance & Leave
p. 51, 7.02 par. 8

Employee Handbook Part:

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #:

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District {stated in policy #152, secand paragraph,
last sentence);

"Faor feachers hired hafore July 1, 2013, accrued siek lime up'm a [lmit of B8Q hours shell be paid out et $12.50 par hous at the time of retiramant.”
CHANGE TO:
Acctued siok tme up lo a limit of 880 hours shall be paid out al $12.50 per hour at the lima of relirement.

This revislon will provide Incentiva for slaff ta ramaln in tha district unlil relirernent,

’i‘-*********3{‘-**3’*******k‘”ﬁ‘****11‘-**********ﬂ‘**********
7 DISTRICT OFFICE USF ONLY
Farm received: /- / 5~/ 5 jers

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES___ or NO ___: Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: (‘7956 ]lc(,.é‘{ [;L.;y NCregSe, — Sea (L‘g:zxc%ﬂ

Lega! Impact: (\D‘L Lo f—')VF Qﬂ,’v{f ?65,:1{ l/"l—"tl/ki&f{‘

HR/handboolkapproved/sugzested revisions farm 5/27/15

?




Appendix A Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the formis
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
QOffice, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year,

Employee/School Board Member Name: Christine SChUHO
Insurance and Leave

Employee Handbook Part:

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: pg 51’ 702 par' 8

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District {stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

"For teachers hired before July 1, 2013, accrued sick time up to a limit of 880 hours shall be paid out at $12.50 per
hour at the time of retirement.”

Change to: Accrued sick time up to a limit of 880 hours shall be paid out at $12.50 per hour at the time of retirement,
This revision will provide incentive to all staff to remain in the district until retirement.

o Ak ok ok ok o o ook skook ok Sk sk s ok o ok ok ok of ok ok ok ok ook oK oK ok ok ok sk sk ok ok o ok R R ok ok ok

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: _/ -/ € /50

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES _ or NO __: Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: O PE@ }(Qé; /le, ey ease —See Ci‘{f{‘a(%aﬂ
Legal Impact: i\O‘F' e Cﬂﬂ ﬂfuif (é((/‘;,&/ iﬁ:;{/ﬂamL

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 5/27/15

(9)



Certified Staff
Section 7 — Insurance and Leave

7.02  Sick, Personal, Bereavement, and Leave Benefits
Refer to Policy 529.1 — Family & Medical Leave
A. Sicl/Personal/Business:

1.

(%)

Teachers may be absent for personal illness or injury up to eleven (11) days per
year. Three (3) of these days may be used each year for personal or business
leave. Unless an emergency situation prevails, a Teachers On Call (T.0.C.)
request for a personal day(s) must be submitted at least forty-eight (48) hours
prior to using personal time. Personal days may not be used on the first day of
school, during the last two (2) weeks of the school year, or to extend vacation or
holidays except with prior approval of the District Administrator or designee.

In instances of emergency situations, when prior approval cannot be obtained, the
teacher shall submit a statement to the District Administrator or designee who
shall then determine whether a personal day may be used.

If such days are not taken, they will accumulate each year as sick leave.

The full allowance for sick leave for the school year will be credited at the
beginning of the school term on the first day of school. Unused sick leave will be
credited to each teacher’s reserve, which may accumulate to one hundred ten
(110) days at the end of the school year.

If a teacher fails to complete the full term of the contract for reasons other than
illness, such leave may be pro-rated on the basis of one (1) day per month of the
time in service beginning with September.

In the case where an employee qualifies for long-term disability, the District shall
continue to pay teacher group health, hospitalization insurance provided the
policy continues to have waiver of premium, for the duration of the annual
contract after sick leave has been exhausted. The provisions stated in Part 1T,
Section 7, number #13 of this handbook do not apply (they are exclusive to child-
rearing/maternity leave). If the teacher fails to return to duty the following school
year, a partial repayment of health and dental insurance premiums will be
required. The amount due will be one-half (%) of the full cost of health and
dental insurance premiums paid after FMLA provisions, if applicable, have been
exhausted. The Board has the discretion to waive all or part of the repayment of
premiums if, in the Board’s judgment, the termination is beyond the teacher’s
control.

Any employee covered by long term disability insurance shall not be eligible to
claim sick leave pay at such time as the employee becomes eligible for LTD
benefits.

For teachers hired before July 1%, 2013, accrued sick time up to a limit of 880
hours shall be paid out at $12.50 per hour at the time of retirement. Teachers with
at least twenty (20) years of service in the District may accumulate and be paid
for up to 968 hours payable upon retirement. Payment will be made into a non-
elective TSA according to the terms of the District 403b plan.

Sick or personal or business time as outlined in this section shall be administered

on an hourly basis of an eight (8) hour day.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Sick or personal or business time of less than one hundred twenty (120) minutes
will not be charged to sick or personal or business or funeral or bereavement leave
if a substitute is not required.

The District agrees that no deduction for benefits will be required for up to two
(2) days of non-paid leave in a contract year. Benefits will continue to be paid by
the District.

If an employee takes more than two (2) non-paid leave days in a contract year, the
District will deduct from the employee’s payroll an amount per day determined by
the following formula: Formula — divide the annual cost of the benefit by 260
days, multiply the resulting amount times the number of non-paid leave days in
excess of two (2), and the result will be the total amount to be deducted for
benefits. For example, if the health insurance annual premium is $18,180 divided
by 260 days the amount will be approximately $70 per day for employees with the
family health plan,

All requests for unpaid leave must be approved by the District Administrator or
his/her designee.



O 3IgRL 8340 277 'sidesuon iweueg Loy

S~
o

802'S¥LS

SL¥'L05'28 B2¥'ELS 9z¥' 1613 1 er0'r6L3 PEZ9ELS GZO'L9LLS tes-ozal Apgey peruooe [euenmoe papunun b
0 ¢l 0 o] ] 0 ¢ S]OSSE JO AN|BA [BLUBNDY £
SL¥'L0S'T BLY'EL 92¥'161 : CY0'VEL ¥62'8ElL §20'1L9L°L 20T'sh1 lazz + ez Tyy [BlO ‘2
98L'C9g") 0 . £6G'91L 7 103's0) 92526 0S60rZ'L 98L', Tyy sauey iy -
529'2E6 BLF'EL £9€'G4 2 Zrs'es 282 'el SL0'0ZS TGP LEL Tvy saney walns
b ¥10Z/3/L 4O s AJIqe) pentooe |euBndY
SZ0'60LS ¢ 0% LZh'es { goe'os 650°8$ 168'78% ' 0zg'Lg g $10Z/L/2 JO ST 1500 [BUWION L
; SHIBISISSY
jejoy sauney 18yio UBIpOISID uoddng SigyIed | UORBASIUILPY &

ARBASIULPY §

SomIqeIT 9340 PaLInau] jB1OL

¥L0Z 'L Ainf 10,88 (Tyyn) ANder peruosy |euenpy papuniun pue
17 PRIUIDY |RLENDY 1S07) [eULION JC UojBUILLIS)E]

101SIq] jooyos Alunwwio) sjinsueay

<

2 9[aeL 9340



J®[eL 934G

%%Q%QW\ - urﬂWvN gfg

SeRNIQEr] g3d0 paunou} jejo

277 'sidsouo) wauesg Asy

B2V LS0'ZS . ££6'652% FPE LIPS PR R AR 86£'992% Ie# - oz#] Angel| panode euenice papuniun g
% 960'S £%9 £10'1 6LL°C 659 S}OSSE JO BN[EA [BUBNPY  °C

/858902 89/5'09z REEZLY 9B5'9zZL L 250192 ((pz# - oz#)+(qg# - ez)] Allgel penuooe |euenoE [Bj0] ‘@

LEZ'eS 180°/7 269°L1 9820l 2lg'e swniwaid Jo uojuod pred (aaioe Jusung) salnal auning p

60R°980'L ' 880'812 050'vZy 000°6LE 119621 89340 Jo anjea (sAioe JualLNg) 9aulel aining 2

02907 gaL'clL 0 ¥06'681 862'¢ swiniwald jo uoipod pled saunsl JuaiNg g

€LE'6EC L 7 vELTE 0 98£'800°L £52'8¥L 8340 10 enjea aauel Wealng e
2L0T/L/L 30 sB AlIqEe)] peniooe [eemoy 7

- 6828 9os° L1 09022 ¥ET'VE 696'¥L [ ~ BL#] 1500 [BULIOU |BJO |

g89'c M oLe'L £cs cie'L gLy swnjweJd Jo uopod pizd (sAljoe JUSUND) 82l MmN g

; 215°18% WM 9.8'CL$ £6.'22% Fr¥GES SoP'SLS 83d0 Jo anjen (salse JusLng) sauje: aimng g
w ch0Z/L/L JO s iS00 [BUICN L

/8ia . sSuBIpoISn SIUEISISSY sioyoea oJesISIUN
1 1pOJSID) oneSIUILIDY yoea | siolRUSIULPY

de (Tvvn) Aullge] pansoy [euenoY pepuniun pue
paniooy [BLENIOY 1800 [BULION JO UonBUKLIBIS(]

UsIq [00Y0S AJUNWIWIOD [IASUBAT

0 3lgel 9340

8. . afied



2 °geL g3d0

£99'cte'se yLz'eess PAAARN A AR VRS
0 0 0
£59'epe's AATASS 122 L¥S'y FAA A VA2
SPe'Lg 4] /89'v8 8sl'e
o9pZ' L9ty 88H'80¢ ZV'6.G6°¢E 08E'CLY
9L9'6¥ 0 919'6¥ 0
8/8'6LL°L 9//'ce ZOL'9860"L 0
L¥0'68E 0£8/2 /85°¢Le $29'L¥
Z69°9 0 9¥¥'9 ore
€£L'GBES 0£8'22% £€0'02e% 0.8'2v9$
Aaer elo] u suBIpeISNY slayoea] g pajuasaidey-uon

Aunqer] g340 paunauj jeyoy

o

O 'sidaouen ususg Asy

[e# - 9z#] Auqel paniooe jeuenioe papuniun

S)OSSE JO 8n[BA [euenoy

[(Pz# - oz#) + (az# - e2#)] Aungey peniooe 2101 "o
swniwiald Jo uoitiod pied oanal sining ‘p
S}48UBg 9340 JO @njea saljjat amning o

swniwald jo uciped pled saugey g
S|Bueq 9340 Jo snea salney e
8002Z/L/2 30 se Aujiqe)| peniooy

[q1# - BL#] 1800 jewioU [B)O] D
swiniwaud jo uouod pied ssaal aunn g
S|vusq gado jo enjep,

800Z/L// 10 S€ 1S02 [BUWLION

8002/1/L 10 se Ajjiger poniooy [elenoy pspunjun pue
Alliger] paniooy |eUEmOY 1500 [BULION 4O uoneulUISIS

Jou1SIg [00YOS AJUNWIWo)) afjIASuBAT

O 8qe L g2d0



Appendix A Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMIPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Gary Feldt
Employee Handbook Part: Part 2 (Certlﬂed Staﬁc)

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: page 53/SeCt|0n 8/#801 a

Suggested Revision:

How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

Change deadline for retiremeant natification t¢ be more in line with contract deadlines instead of February 1st and
the late notification penalties more in line with the dates and amounts for late employee resignations. Retirement
decisions require a lot of information gathering and planning and putting an early February deadline on that
important decision Is not possible to mest.

Kok o ok ook ok ool e ook ok ok ok o ook ok s o sk o o o R sk ok ok ok Rk ok ok ok o sk Ok R

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: /2 -/ 8-/ jep-

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount;ﬂ&éﬂ f@/_VLl-/H/E,/M%IéS ey (.@\Qzez,v[ C)#g/ b[%}»ﬂzfp
ﬁ)@@\é’\&dﬁ Aot connot ol cKara I rite :]EQQCX?,-

} o A3 ', g .
C,O)\é’\/btc/‘lﬁ e [&S HQ—O.‘ A4z f"’y‘f’ﬁfgjb(e ULD pé&,‘%}e rrire
HR/handbookapgroved/suggested revisions forr%s;'zzﬂs

M&#Jw/f)aaﬁ* ot recer nRq" RO Ry
i dupe. 10

Legal Impact:




Certified Staff
Section 8 — Retirement Benefits

8.01 Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) Contributions
All qualified regularly employed full-time and part-time teaching personnel shall pay 100% of
the employee’s required contribution into the WRS as required by state statute.

A. Retirement Notification:
Retirement notification shall be submitted on or before February 1% for budget
planning and staffing purposes. Employees who submit their notice after F ebruary 1%
may be required to pay $500.00.




EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Evansville, Wisconsin

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

The regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Evansville Community School District was
held Wednesday, February 10, 2016, at 6:00 pm in the District Beard and Training Center.

The meeting was called to order by President Mason Braunschweig. Roll call was taken.
Members present: Braunschweig, Busse, Rasmussen, Spanton Nelson, Hammann, Allén and HS
Rep. Roth. Oberdorf arrived at 6:01 pm and HS Rep. Michael arrived at 6:03 pm

APPROVE AGENDA
Motion by Mr. Busse, seconded by Ms. Hammann, moved to approve thi ag da a presented.
Motion carried, 6-0 (voice vote).

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS/RECOGNITION/UPCOMING EVENT&
¢ Open Enrollment — February 1 - April 29, 2016 h
e School Bus Drivers Week — Week of February 8-12
e Energy Fair — April 22, 2016

s Back To School Days — August 10, 10:00 am —

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS ;
Seven parents/business owners spoke on'bt

-INFORMATION & DISCUSSION

from Little Tweet hlld Care, the in town bus morning pick up of students, and 4K
transportation. Discussion. Consensus of the Board to continue current practice for two weeks,
‘Board meeting, February 24, for the Board to vote on.

Ms. Hammann presented for a first reading, policies: #320-General Organization; #343.3-Online
Learning/Virtual School Program; #343.31-Virtual School Program-Administrative Rule; #343.3
Form-Virtual School Program Form; #522.2-Tobacco/Nicotine/Electronic Cigarette Use by Staff
on School Premises; #832-Tobacco/Nicotine-Free School Property; and #832.1-Use of
Tobacco/Nicotine/Electronic Cigarette Products on School Premises. Discussion. Policies to be
updated and to come back for a second reading.

Mr. Rasmussen presented for a second reading, Proposed Employee Handbook Changes: #1, #2,
#3-Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 29, 8.05, Sick Leave Bank-Add Number of Sick Days to the Bank;

Page L of 2



#7-Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 50, Section 7, 7.02-Sick/Personal Days-Change All; #8, #9—Part 2,
Certified Staff, pg. 51, 7.02, Par. 8, Sick, Personnel, Bereavement, and Leave Benefits-Change
Language; and #10-Part 2, Certified Staff, pg. 53, 8.01 A, Retirement Notification-Change
Deadline.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS
One parent spoke on bus transportation.

BUSINESS {Action ltem)
Motion by Mr. Busse, seconded by Ms. Spanton Nelson, moved to approve the Job Share
Agreement for the 2016-2017 school year between Nancy Greve-Shannon and Jo AQ
Grovesteen, as presented. Discussion. Motion carried, 7-0 (voice vote).

CONSENT (Action Items)
Motion by Ms. Spanton Nelson, seconded by Mr. Busse, moved to approve. |
items: polnc;es #412-School Census; #412.1-Full-Time Students; #4\4‘3 4 Stgd

vote).

FUTURE AGENDA
The February 24, 2016, Regular Meeting agenda

FIVE MINUTE BREAK
A five minute break was taken.

EXECUTIVE SESSION E
Motion by Mr. Allen, seconde )_'by M. O,,erdorf moved to move into executive session, under
Wisconsin State Statute 1 .85 \)( and (e) to consider employment, promotion, compensation
or performance evaluatioh:data of a any public employee over which the governmental body has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, and to deliberate and discuss strategy concerning

collective bargaining negotliatloﬁs, namely to discuss negotiation strategy concerning the 2015-
2016 contract wut the Evansville Education Association covering teachers. Motion carried, 7-0

Submitted by Kelly Mosher, Deputy Clerk

Approved: Dated: Approved:
Mason Braunschweig, President

Page 2 0of 2



Approved: May 8, 2006 458
Recommendation - to nse new version

EVANSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT WELLNESS

The Evansville School District promotes healthy schools by supporting wellness, good nutrition
and regular physical activity as a part of the total learning environment. The District supports a
healthy environment where children learn and participate in positive dietary and lifestyle
practices. By facilitating learning through the support and promotion of good nutrition and
physical activity, schools contribute to the basic health status of children. Tmproved health helps
optimize student performance potential,

A. Provide a comprehensive learning environment for developing and practicing lifelong
wellness behaviors. The entire school environment, not just the classroom, shall be aligned
with healthy school goals to positively influence a student’s understanding, beliefs and
habits as they relate to good nutrition and regular physical activity. A healthy school
environment should not be dependent on revenue from high-fat, low nutrient foods to
support school programs.

Health Curriculum

The health curriculum will educate students to develop the knowledge, attitudes, skills and
behavior for life long healthy eating habits and physical activity. The district has approved
a K-12 comprehensive health curriculum. This curriculum supports the philosophy that the
quality of life is dependent upon the students’ interaction with their total environment,
which includes their physical, mental and social well-being. Included in the health
curriculum as a performance goal, is that students will learn good food habits to help build
and maintain good health., This performance goal is promoted throughout the K-12
comprehensive health curriculum.

Physical Education Curriculum

The physical education curriculum teaches children the importance of physical exercise and
exposes students to a wide range of physical activities, so that students develop the
knowledge and skills to be physically active for life. Students receive instruction in the five
health-related components of fitness (cardiovascular endurance, muscular endurance,
muscular strength, flexibility and body composition). Body composition instruction
includes proper diet and healthy eating habits. The curriculum promotes lifelong physical
activity and fitness, which includes healthy eating as its primary goal.

B. Support and promote proper dietary habits contributing to students’ health status and
academic performance. All foods available on school grounds and at school-sponsored
activities during the instructional day should meet or exceed the District Nutrition
Standards. Emphasis should be placed on foods that are nutrient dense per calorie. Foods
should be served with consideration toward variety, appeal, taste, safety and packaging to
ensure high quality meals.

C. Promote Student Engagement in Physical Activity.
A quality physical education program is an essential component for all students to learn
about and participate in physical activity. Physical activity should be included in a school’s



education program from grades pre-K through 12, Physical activity could include regular
instructional physical education, co-extra curricular activities and recess. Substituting any
one of these components for the others is not appropriate.

D. The Evansville School District is committed to improving academic performance in
high-risk groups.
Educators, administrators, parents, health practitioners and communities must all
acknowledge the critical role student health plays in academic stamina and performance and
help ensure students’ basic nourishment and activity needs are met. Research identifies the
positive relationship between good nutrition, physical activity and the capacity of students
to develop and learn should be identified to help ensure widespread understanding of the
benefits to healthy school environments.

Legal Ref.: Child Nutrition
WIC Reauthorization Act of 2004

Local Ref.: Policies: #458.1, #458.2, and #458.3,



Approved: May &, 2006 458

Revised:
1# Reading: 2/24/16
Recommendation — to use this new version — Required Policy

EVANSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT WELLNESS POLICY AND PROCEDURES

The Bvansville Community Schoo] District Board of Education promotes healthy schools by
supporting wellness, good nutrition and regular physical activity as a part of the total learning
environment. The District supports a healthy environment where children learn and participate
in positive dietary and lifestyle practices. By facilitating learning through the support and
promotion of good nutrition and physical activity, schools contribute to increase the academic
achievement of students. Improved health helps optimize student performance potential. It is the
policy of the District that:

¢ Schools shall provide nutrition education that will educate students to develop the
knowledge, attitudes, skills and behavior for life long healthy eating habits. Included in
the nutrition education as a performance goal, students will learn £ood food habits to help
build and maintain good health. This performance goal is promoted throughout PK-12
nutrition education.

» Schools shall support and promote dietary habits contributing to students’ health status
and academic performance. All foods available on school grounds and at school-
sponsored activities during the instructional day should meet or exceed the District
Nutrition Standards. Emphasis should be placed on foods that are nutrient dense per
calorie. Food should be served with consideration toward variety, appeal, taste, safety
and packaging to ensure high quality meals.

» Schools shall provide physical education that teaches children the importance of physical
exercise and exposes students to a wide range of physical activities, so that students
develop the knowledge and skills to be physically active for life. Students receive
instruction in the five health-related components of fitness (cardiovascular endurance,
muscular endurance, muscular strength, flexibility and body composition). Body
composition instruction includes proper diet and healthy eating habits. The education
promotes lifelong physical activity and fitness.

* Schools shall provide a quality physical activity program. Physical activity should be
included in a school’s education program from grades PK through 12. Physical activity
could include regular instructional physical education, co-extracurricular activities and
recess. Substituting any one of these components for the others is will not be considered
appropriate.

Evansville Community School District Policy 458 Page 1 of 3



PROCEDURES

A. Goals;

1. The District will provide nutrition education that will teach, encourage, and support

healthy behaviors.

a. Nutrition education shall be based on a standards driven PK-12 comprehensive
framework (Wisconsin Model Academic Standards for Nutrition).

b. Nutrition education shall be provided to parents in the form of handouts, school
website, school newsletters, or other appropriate means.

¢. Nutrition education shall link to the larger school community, such as schoo] and
non-school sponsored activities.

2. The District will follow established nutritional guidelines:
a. The school lunch provider will follow the National School Lunch Program guidelines
by offering;

1. Atleast 4 fruits and/or non-fried vegelables per day
2. Whole grains
3. 1% or low fat milk
4, The elimination of trans fats
5. Using low fat versions of foods or low fat cooking methods

b, All students shall be provided at least 30 minutes for lunch/recess.

¢. Strong consideration must be given to nonfood items as part of any teacher-to-
student incentive program. Should teachers feel compelled to utilize food items as an
incentive, they must adhere to the District Nutritional Standards.

3. The District will provide physical education and activity to all students in grades PK-12.
a. Provide 90 minutes of instructional physical education for clementary students per
week.
b. Provide 225 minutes of instructional physical education for middie and high school
students per week, on average.
¢. Ensure students take a required 1.5 credits of physical education during high school,

B. Guidelines for Food and Beverages Offered to Students at School Functions:

1. The District encourages the use of nutrient dense foods for all school functions and
activities. At any school function (parties, celebrations, feasts, sporting events, etc.),
healthy food options must be available. Suggestions listed below:

Raw vegetable sticks/slices with low-fat dressing or yogurt dip

Fresh fruit and 100% fruit juices

Frozen fruit juice pops

Dried fruits (raisins, banana chips, etc.)

Trail mix (dried fruits and nuts)

Low-fat meat and cheese sandwiches

Party mix (variety of cereals, nuts, pretzels, etc.)

Low-sodium crackers

Baked corn chips & fat free potato chips with salsa and low-fat dips

Low-fat muffins, granola bars and cookies

Angel food and sponge cakes

AT PER e o op

Evansille 011ity Smool Ditrict Polic g Pae 2 of 3



1. Flavored yogurt & fruit parfaits

m. Gelatin and low-fat pudding cups

n. Low-fat ice creams, frozen yogurts, and sherbets
0. Low-fat and skim milk products

p. Water

It is recognized thai there may be rare special occasions, (birthdays, class celebrations)
when the school principal may allow a school group to deviate from these guidelines,

The vending sales of water, 100% juices, low calorie sports drinks, and any dairy based
beverages will be permitted prior to and after school and throughout the instructional day
in the middle and high school (with the exception of lunch periods).

C. Fundraising:

L.

Fundraising activities intended for student consumption during the school day must
follow the nutrition guidelines outlined in this policy.

2. TFundraising activities intended for purchase outside of the school day are exempt from

the outlined nutrition guidelines. Order forms for these fundraisers may be distributed
during the school day if consumption is not intended during school hours.

D. Policy Implementation and Evaluation:

L.

The principal of each school shall ensure the inclusion of the actions set forth in this
policy in Sections A and B.

The District Wellness Policy Commitiee wili evaluate the policy and revisit it as
necessary to meet DPI guidelines.
a. The Committee will meet a minimum of one time annually
b. The Committee membership will include:
i. Parent Representative
ii. Student Representative from the middle or high school level
iii. Administrative Representative -
iv. Physical Education Teacher
v. Health Education Teacher
vi. General Education Teacher
vii. District Nurse
viii. Food Service Director
ix. School Board Member
¢. The District Administrator will inform and update the community on an annual basig
according to the Wellness Policy Committee’s report.

Legal Ref.: Child Nutrition WIC Reauthorization Act of 2004

2010 Healthy, Hunger Free Kids Act

Local Ref.: Policy #458.1, District Nutrition Standards

ansle C01mty School Dtrict olic 458

| PgeB 0



Approved: May 8, 2006 458.1

Recommendation — to replace with new 458.1

STUDENT NUTRITION PROCEDURES

The Evansville School District promotes healthy schools by supporting wellness, good nutrition
and regular physical activity as a part of the total learning environment. The District supports a
healthy environment where children learn and participate in positive dietary and lifestyle
practices. By facilitating learning through the support and promotion of good nutrition and
physical activity, schools contribute to the basic health status of children. Improved health helps
optimizes student performance potential.

Hot Lunch/Breakfast Program:

o The full meal program will continue to follow the U.S. Government’s Nutrition
Standards.

¢ The Hot Lunch/Breakfast provider will be expected to make every effort to follow the
District Nutrition Standards when determining the items in a la carte sales.

e A la carte items that do not meet the District Nutrition Standards may be acceptable for
student consumption within moderation (i.e., limit quantity sold to an individual student).

e A lacarte items that do not meet the District Nutrition Standards may be acceptable when
offered on an intermittent basis.

Lunchroom Climate:
¢ A lunchroom environment that provides students with a relaxed, enjoyable climate should
be developed.
o Itis encouraged that the lunchroom environment be a place where students have:
- adequate space to eat and pleasant surroundings;
- adequate time for meals {the American Food Service Association recommends at
least 20 minutes for lunch from the time they are seated);
- convenient access to hand washing facilities before meals.
e Itis also encouraged that recess time be offered before lunch,

Fundraising:
e All fundraising projects will be expected to make every effort to follow the District

Nutrition Standards when determining the items being sold.

Teacher-to-Student Incentive:

Strong consideration must be given to nonfood items as part of any teacher-to- student incentive
programs. Should teachers feel compelled to utilize food items as an incentive, they must adhere
to the District Nutritional Standards.

Student Nutrition Education:
The Evansville School District has a comprehensive curriculum approach to nutrition in
kindergarten through ninth grade. Beginning with the 2006-2007 school year, all instructional




staff will be encouraged to integrate nutritional themes into daily lessons when appropriate. The
health benefits of good nutrition should be emphasized. These nutritional themes include but are
not limited to:

* Knowledge of food guide pyramid * Healthy diet

* Healthy heart choices * Food labels

* Sources and variety of foods * Major nutrients

* Guide to a healthy diet * Multicultural influences

* Diet and disease * Serving sizes

* Understanding calories * Proper sanitation

* Healthy snacks * Jdentify and limit junk food
* Healthy breakfast

The District Comprehensive Health Curriculum reinforces nutrition education to help students
practice these themes in a supportive school environment,

Parent Nutrition Education: (2007-2008)
e Nutrition education will be provided to parents beginning at the elementary level. The
goal will be to continue to educate parents throughout the middle and high school levels.
¢ Nutrition education may be provided in the form of handouts, postings on the District
website, or presentations that focus on nutritional value and healthy lifestyles.

Evansville School District Wellness Committee:

With the purposes of monitoring the implementation of the District’s policy, evaluating policy
progress, serving as a resource to school sites, and revising the policy as necessary it is
recommended that a District-wide wellness committee be established. The committee would
meet a minimum of two times annually with committee membership as follows:

District Food Service Coordinator

Parent representative from each school level

Student representative from the middle and high school levels
Administrative Representative

Physical Education and Health Teacher from each school level



Approved: May 8, 2006 458.1 (formerly 458.2)

Revised:
1% Reading: 2/24/16

Recommendation — to replace current 458.2

DISTRICT NUTRITION STANDARDS

The Evansville Community School District strongly encourages the sale or distribution of
nutrient dense foods for all school functions and activities. Nutrient dense foods are those foods
that provide students with calories rich in the nutrient content needed to be healthy. In an effort
to support the consumption of nutrient dense foods in the school setting, the District has adopted
the following Nutrition Standards governing the sale of food, beverages and candy on school
grounds.

Food (Including Vending):
Any given food item for sale prior to the start of the school day and throughout the instructional
day will have no more than 200 calories for a snack item and 350 calories for an entrée item.

Any given food item for sale prior to the start of the school day and throughout the instructional
day will have no more than 230 mg of sodium for a snack item and 480 mg of sodium for an
entrée item.

Any given food item for sale prior to the start of the school day and throughout the instructional
day will have no more than 30% of its total calories derived from fat,

Any given food item for sale prior to the start of the school day and throughout the instructional
day will have no more that 10% of its total calories derived from saturated fat.

Nuts and seeds are exempt from these standards because they are nutrient dense and contain high
levels of monounsaturated fat. Foods high in monounsaturated fat heip lower “bad” LDL
cholesterol and maintain “good” HDI. cholesterol.

Beverage (Including Vending):
Schools may sell:
* plain water (with or without carbonation)
e unflavored, low fat milk
unflavored or fat free milk and milk alternatives permitted by NSLP
100% fruit or vegetable juice

¢ 100% fruit or vegetable juice diluted with water (with our without carbonation), and no
added sweeteners

Evansville Community School District Policy 458.1 Page 1 of 2



| Elementary |

_Middle |

Water, plain No portion limit No portion limit No portion limit
Milk and Juice Max%mum serving Ma;gmum serving Maxllmum Serving
size of 8oz size of 120z size of 120z

Calorie free, flavored water or other
ﬂavor.egl and/or carbc?nated beverages Not allowable Not allowable Max.lmum serving
containing < 5 calories per 8oz or < 10 size of 200z
calories per 200z

e . : .
Beverages with <40 calories per 8oz , Not allowable Not allowable Maximum serving

or < 60 calories per 120z

size of 120z

Fundraising Activities and Concessions:

Any fundraising requires administrative approval. To create a school environment that supports
the promotion of healthy food and beverage choices for children, it is important to consider all
venues where food and beverages are consumed or sold. The following recommendations are
encouraged to promote healthy choices for children related to fundraising activities supported by

the school:

¢ Offer non-food items as the items that raise funds such as books, gift wrap, candles,

plants, flowers, school promotional items, ctc.

e  When food and beverages are sold include some healthy food choices.

Legal Ref.: Child Nutrition WIC Reauthorization Act of 2004
2010 Healthy, Hunger Free Kids Act

Local Ref.: Policy #458 — Evansville School District Wellness Policy and Procedures

Evansville Community School District Policy 458.1

Page 2 of 2




Approved: May 8, 2006 458.2
1% Reading: 2/24/16

Recommendation — to remove, as recommended to list as 458.1

DISTRICT NUTRITION STANDARDS

The Evansville School District strongly encourages the sale or distribution of nutrient dense
foods for all school functions and activities. Nutrient dense foods are those foods that provide
students with calories rich in the nutrient content needed to be healthy. In an effort to support
the consumption of nutrient dense foods in the school setting, the District has adopted the
following Nutrition Standards governing the sale of food, beverages and candy on school
grounds. Sites are encouraged to study these standards and develop building policy using the
following District Nutrition Standards as minimal guidelines,

Food: (Including Vending):
Any given food item for sale prior to the start of the school day and throughout the instructional
day will have no more than 30% of its total calories derived from fat.

Any given food item for sale prior to the start of the school day and throughout the instructional
day will have no more that 10% of its total calories derived from saturated fat.

Nuts and seeds are exempt from these standards because they are nutrient dense and contain high
levels of monounsaturated fat. Foods high in monounsaturated fat help lower “bad” LDL
cholesterol and maintain “good” HDL cholesterol.

It is recognized that there may be rare special occasions, (birthdays, class celebrations) when the
school principal may allow a school group to deviate from these guidelines: when connected to
district approved curriculum.

Encourage the consumption of nutrient dense foods, i.e., whole grains, fresh fruits and
vegetables.

Acceptable classroom snacks or treats: see “Guidelines for Food and Beverages Offered”

Fundraising Activities and Concessions:
Any fundraising requires administrative approval. To create a school environment that supports
the promotion of healthy food and beverage choices for children, it is important to consider all
venues where food and beverages are consumed or sold, The following recommendations are
encouraged to promote healthy choices for children related to fundraising activities supported by
the school:

* Offer non-food items as the items that raise funds such as books, gift wrap, candles,

plants, flowers, school promotional items, etc.
e When food and beverages are sold include some healthy food choices.




Approved: May 8, 2006 458.3
1% Reading: 2/24/16 '

Recommendation — to remove

GUIDELINES FOR FOOD AND BEVERAGES OFFERED
TO STUDENTS AT SCHOOL FUNCTIONS

The Evansville School District encourages the use of nutrient dense foods for all school
functions and activities. Nutrient dense foods are those foods that provide students with calories
rich in the nutrient content needed to be healthy. At any school function, (parties, celebrations,
feasts, sporting events, ctc.) healthy food choice options must be available. Some suggested
foods are listed below:

* Raw vegetable sticks/slices with low-fat dressing or yogurt dip
Fresh fruit and 100% fruit juices

Frozen fruit juice pops

Dried fruits (raisins, banana chips, etc.)

Trail mix (dried fruits and nuts)

Low-fat meats and cheese sandwiches

Party mix (variety of cereals, nuts, pretzels, etc.)

Low-sodium crackers

Baked corn chips & fat free potato chips with salsa and low-fat dips
Low-fat mufting, granola bars and cookies

Angel food and sponge cakes

Flavored yogurt & fruit parfaits

Gelatin and low-fat pudding cups

Low-fat ice creams, frozen yogurts, and sherbets

Low-fat and skim milk products

Water

Beverages:
Vending and non vending sales of any carbonated beverages will not be permitted during the

instructional day. Carbonated beverages will be permitted at special school events as approved
by the building principal.

The vending sales of water, 100% juices, low calorie sport drinks, and dairy based beverages will
be permitted prior to and after school and throughout the instructional day in the middle and high
schools (with the exception of lunch periods).

No carbonated beverages will be allowed during lunches in grades K-8.



Approved: April 14, 2003 383

Revised:
1%t Reading: 2/24/16

ANIMALS IN SCHOOL

Proper care should be taken with invertebrate animals. The term “animals” throughout this
policy refers only to vertebrate animals. Animals may be brought into the classroom for
educational purposes only, but under conditions which insure the safety of the students and staff,
and the well being of the animal. Instructional use of animals includes the raising, care, and
observation of live organisms. It also includes carefully supervised dissection and observation of
preserved specimens.

Guidelines:

1. Instructors must be familiar with the needs and behaviors of a given species prior to its
introduction into the classroom.

2, All animals must be appropriately housed, humanely cared for, and properly property
handled. Any animal exhibiting signs of illness or distress must be tended to by a
qualified caretaker. Production animals should only be housed temporarily and for
particular instructional purposes.

3. The staff member must make provisions for the care and maintenance of the animal(s)
during the days when school is not in session.

4, The staff member must use and instruct the students to use the District’s Blood Borne
Pathogen and Communicable Disease Policy.

5. Before any animal shall be brought into the school, prior permission must be received
from the supervising teacher and the principal.

6. Only the staff member or students designated by the teacher are to handle the animals.

7. At the beginning of the year, parents/guardians will be notified in writing about animals
that may be in the classroom throughout the year. The notification will request
information regarding any known allergies, compromised immunity, and phobia.
Facilities in which animals are regularly present must be posted at the door.

9. Prior to entering the classroom, all animals must be inspected by staff for any signs of
illness, open sores or abnormal behaviors. Staff has the discretion to refuse any animal
into the classroom.

10. The staff is responsible for cleaning and caring of the animal habitat or area used.

11. Staif and students must wash their hands after handling animals. Staff will enforce hand
washing especially before students eat. Animals are not allowed in the vicinity of sinks
where students and staff wash their hands, in any area where food is prepared, stored, and
served, or in areas used for cleaning and storage of food, utensils, or dishes.

12. If students or staff has any unusual contact such as being bitten, the contact area should
be immediately cleaned thoroughly with soap and water. The supervising adult must
report the incident immediately to the school office, which will notify parents/guardians,
or other appropriate agencies.

13. Petbirds-ineluding parrots and-paralceets, All animals are not permitted at school unless

they have been veterinarian-certified as-psittacesis-free.
14. Live animals may be released only according to specified guidelines.

15. Animals are not to be transported on school buses.

16. Companion/therapy animels-foruse-with-disabled-persens maybe / are ?? permitted in

the schools and buses with administrative approval.

=

Evansville Community School District Policy 383 Page 1 of 2



Dissection:

Students may dissect dead animal organs and tissues only if purchased from a reputable
dealer and preserved in a manner that prevents zoonotic disease transmissions. Any other
use of dead animal organs and tissues must have the approval of the principal. Lab study
may never include contact with cerebral spinal fluid.

1

£ B
gh o @

Dy o= Un
e}

o B =
gn Un

%

e — A W
Evansville Community School District Policy 383 Page 2 of 2



Approved: March 13, 2006 834

1% Reading: 2/14/16
Recommendation — to remove, not required

DOMESTIC PETS ON SCHOOL PREMISES

Pursuant to Evansville city ordinance, Chapter 14, any person owning or having control of an
animal on property, public or private, which property is not owned or occupied by such person,
shall promptly remove excrement left by such animal and place it in a proper receptacle, bury it
or flush it in a toilet on property owned or occupied by the person. Any person causing or
permitting an animal to be on any property, public or private, which property is not owned or
occupied by such person, shall have in his immediate possession a device or object suitable for
removal of the excrement and a depository for the transmission of the excrement to property
owned or occupied by the person.

The running of domestic pets at large on District property is strictly prohibited. Any domestic
pet which is off the premises of its owner or keeper and unaccompanied by the owner or by some
person under his direction, shall be deemed running at large.

No person shall permit any domestic pet owned or kept by him to run at large on District
property. All domestic pets must be restrained with an appropriate leash and coliar.

It is the duty of the person attending domestic pets to clean up any droppings left by such pet on
District property at the time droppings are made.

Violation of this District policy may result in Board of Education action and will be subject to
Section 14-37 of the code of ordinances for the City of Evansville or other municipal ordinances
in the District.

Legal Ref.: Sections 121.02(1)(i) and 174.056 Wisconsin Statutes
TRANS 300.16 Wisconsin Administrative Code



Approved: May 11, 1987 320

Revised:  August 15, 2005
1* Reading: 2/10/16; 2™ Reading: 2/24/16

Recommendation — to remove, not required
GENERAL ORGANIZATION PLAN

The Board shall provide a K~12 educational program for all children in the School District of
Bvansville. Grouping of instructional levels in school facilities shall be as follows:

Pre-school through Grade 2 Elementary School
Grades 3 through 5 Intermediate School
Grades 6 through 8 Middle School

Grades 9 through 12 Senior High School



Approved: June 14, 2010 3433
Revised: April 9,2014

Revised:

1% Reading: 2/10/16; 2™ Reading: 2/24/16

ONLINE LEARNING/VIRTUAL SCHOOL PROGRAM

The Evansville Community School District Board of Education believes that learning takes place
in a variety of situations, environments and locations. The emergence of online learning presents
extraordinary opportunities for access to information and learning, both within and outside the
walls of public schools. The Board recognizes online learning as an appropriate instructional
delivery system for students. Online learning is a method for the District to enhance or expand
course offerings and to provide an educational alternative better suited to the learning needs of a
diverse population of students.

The District believes that to ensure high quality online learning, the courses which are offered
via virtual school must:

1. Be aligned with the vision of the District.

2. Be aligned to Wisconsin’s Model Academic Standards, Common Core State Standards,
Next Generation Science Standards and/or national and/or international standards and/or
College Board’s Advanced Placement (AP) Curriculum.

3. Have an identifiable curriculum that is consistent with District curriculum and local
standards.

4. Be taught by a highly qualified DPI licensed teacher who is certified to teach the content
of the course.

5. Comply with the District graduation and/or advancement requirements.

6. Meet all applicable District policies.

7. Meet all applicable statutory requirements of the State.

In addition, online courses offered by the District will be in compliance with Administrative
Rule.

Online courses that meet District requirements will be awarded credit.

The Board will receive a report at least annually of the online courses taken, via virtual school
and number of students enrolled.

Legal Ref.. Sections 118.15(1)(d-f) Wisconsin Statutes (Compulsory School Attendance)

Local Ref.: Policy #343.31 — Administrative Rule
#345.1 — Grading System
#345.6 — Gradation Requirements
#363.2/554 — Acceptable Use and Internet Safety Policy for Students, Staff
and Guests

e e e e —,— T

Evansville Community School District Policy 343.3 Page 1 of 1




Approved: June 14, 2010 343.31
Revised:  April 9, 2014

Revised:

1%t Reading: 2/10/16; 2 Reading: 2/24/16 PROPOSED NEW LANGUAGE

ONLINE LEARNING/VIRTUAL SCHOOL PROGRAM — ADMINISTRATIVE RULE

The Evansville Community School District participates as a member of the JEDI Virtual School
consortium. JEDI is a public charter school that provides educational services to families whose
students are seeking an educational option in the form of online coursework.

Online course options through JEDI include single course offerings or full-time enrollment in the
virtual school.

I. JEDI Single Course Option:;
A. Course Enrollment Approval:
The following criteria may be used to determine if students are permitted to enroll in
virtual school online courses:

1. The course is not offered face-to-face by the District. .

2. Inrare cases, although the course is offered by the District, the student is
unable to take the course due to an unavoidable scheduling conflict or special
circumstance.

3. The course is needed to meet an individual education plan, a differentiated
education plan, a 504 plan, or a plan to remediate credits for graduation.

4. 'The student is considered a qualified candidate according to the following
criteria:

a) Course availability.

b} Seats open in available courses.

c) Course prerequisites are met.

d) Past successful academic record in online courses.

¢) Past academic record in traditional courses.

f) Teacher recommendation.

g) Parent recommendation.

h) Student interview.

1) Other valid indicators deemed necessary by the District.

5. Approval by the principal.

B. Enrollment Procedures:
The following procedures and guidelines apply to students enrolled full-time in the
District:

1. Students and parents/guardians shall discuss JEDI single course options with a
school counselor and the District JEDT coordinator. The District JEDI
coordinator shall review a syllabus and expected course pacing for each class
of interest to determine the best options for the student and report to the
counselor and the family regarding their findings.

2. Students shall indicate their intention to enroll in JEDI single courses during
the normal course scheduling process for the following academic year. The
District JEDI coordinator shall provide registration materials to families
indicating JEDI single course options with detailed instructions for when they
are due.

m
Evansville Community School District Policy 343.31 Page 1 of 2




3. Not less than two weeks prior to the beginning of the term for which the
student wishes to enroll in the class, the student and parent shall complete the
JEDI single course registration form and submit it to the counseling office
with the tuition payment.

4. Students who have submitted applications and tuition payments in the
designated timeline shall have access to the JEDI class platform by day one of
the term enrolled.

5. Enrollment in virtual school online courses at other times of the year due to
individual circumstances such as illness or expulsion will be decided on a
cases by case basis.

6. Student may enroll in up to two online courses per year.

C. A decision denying a request for a virtual school full-time or single course enrollment

may be appealed to the District Administrator. .

I JEDI Virtual School Full-Time Option:
Students wishing to enroll full-time in the JEDI virtual school program as an alternative
to traditional programming may request a meeting with parents, counselor, and a JEDI
District Coordinator. School officials will then meet to determine the best placement of
the student.

A,

Full-time virtual school students must complete all Evansville High School
Graduation Requirements in order to receive a diploma from Evansville High
School.

Full-time virtual school students may request to rent a laptop provided by the
District for a fee of $50 annually

11T. Virtual School and Online Course Policies and Procedures:

A.
B.

C
D.

e

Wisconsin Statues for attendance apply.

Acceptable internet and technology use policies, and all other applicable District

policies apply.

Students will be held accountable to the policies and procedures outlined in the JTEDI

Virtual School Student and Family Handbook.

Grades received for virtnal/online course work will count the same as other course

grades. All grades received from virtual/online courses will be recorded on the

official student transcript.

Students are required to participate in state mandated assessments.

Students may participate in extra-curricular activities offered by the District

contingent upon them meeting the conditions of participation.

Tuition Cost:

1. Students enrolled in single courses are responsible for the tuition associated with
the course and must provide the tuition fee prior to enrollment in the course. The
District will reimburse the student the tuition fee paid upon successful completion
of the course with a passing grade.

2. Single courses which are taken by student choice for the purpose of student

interest, enrichment opportunity, or to enhance a current course grade (retake the
course) when a comparable course is offered by the school, will be charged the
cost of tuition, without reimbursement.

3. Course time extensions to complete the course are set within allowable ranges by

JEDI. Students who exceed the standard time extensions will be responsible for
the additional cost incurred by JEDI.

Local Ref.: Policy #343.3 — Online Learning/Virtual School Program
m

Evansville Community School District Policy 343.31 Page 2 of 2



Approved: June 14, 2010 343.3 Form
Revised: April 9, 2014
1% Reading: 2/10/16; 2°4 Reading: 2/24¥16 FOR REMOVAL

VIRTUAL SCHOOL PROGRAM FORM

Student Name: Grade Level:
(Please Print)
Address: Date of Birth:
Phone:
Parent/Guardian: Cell Phone:
{Please Print)
Address:

Applying for Part Time or Full Time:

Courses Desired:

I have read and understand policies #343.3 — Virtual School Program and #343.31 — Virtual
School Program Administrative Rule.
Parent/Guardian Signature

[ agree: The student is responsible for the tuition associated with the course and must provide the
tuition fee prior to enrollment in the course. The District will reimburse the student the tuition
fee paid upon successful completion of the course with a passing grade.

Parent/Guardian Signature

Course(s) approved by school counselor and/or school administrator:

(signature) (dated)

AFTER COURSE COMPLETION:

The District must receive the original receipt of tuition payment and an official copy of the
transcript showing the course(s) and passing grades in order to process the tuition reimbursement
request.

School counselor/administrator received:

(signature) (dated)
Official copy of transcript:
Original receipt of tuition payment:

Tuition reimbursement request sent to District Office on for student
tuition reimbursement.




Approved: July 9, 2012 522.2
Revised: April 9,2014

Revised:;
1% Reading: 2/10/16; 2™ Reading; 2/24/16

TOBACCO/NICOTINE/ELECTRONIC CIGARETTE USE BY STAFF
ON SCHOOL PREMISES

The Evansville Community School District prohibits the use of all tobacco and/or nicotine products,
and electronic cigarettes, at all times on school premises, whether during the school day or outside
the school day, and at all school-sponsored activities off school premises in which students are a part.
School premises includes all property owned by, rented by or under the control of the District
including buildings, grounds and vehicles.

Building principals shall be responsible for disseminating information regarding this policy
prohibition, including posting appropriate signs on school premises.

Employees violating this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge,
and referral to law enforcement authorities.

Tobacco and/or nicotine cessation products are exempt from this policy.

The term “electronic cigarette” means any oral device that provides a vapor of liquid nicotine,
lobelia, and/or other substance, and the use or inhalation of which simulates smoking. The term shall
include any such devices, whether they are manufactured, distributed, marketed or sold as e-
cigarcttes, ccigars, e-pipes, vaporizers, or under any other product name or descriptor.

Legal Ref.: Sections 101.123 Wisconsin Statutes (Smoking Prohibited)
120.12(20) (School Board Duties to Prohibit Tobacco Use on School Premises)
134.66(1)(f) (Definition of Nicotine Product)
139.75(12) (Definition of Tobacco Products)
Pro-Children Act of 2001 (Smoking Prohibited in Indoor Facilities Providing Education
Services to Children)

Local Ref: Employee Handbook
Policy #443.41/522.11 — Definitions Relating to Alcohol, Tobacco/Nicotine and Other
Drug Prohibitions
Policy #832 — Tobacco/Nicotine — Free School Property
Policy #832.1 - Use of Tobacco/Nicotine Products on School Premises

m
Evansville Community School District Policy 522.2 Page 1 of 1




Revised: September 12, 2005 832
Revised: April 9,2014

Revised:
1% Reading: 2/10/16

TOBACCO/NICOTINE-FREE SCHOOL PROPERTY

It is the intention of the Evansville Community School District to be "tobacco and nicotine free".
To reach this goal, possession or the use of tobacco and/or nicotine products, and electronic
cigarettes, is prohibited on school premises. School premises includes all property owned by,
rented by or under the control of the District including buildings, grounds and vehicles,

Citizens who are observed using tobacco and/or nicotine products on school premises will be
asked to refrain from doing so. Any individual who fails to comply with the request will be
referred to the appropriate supervisory staff for possible removal from school premises, If said
individual does not leave the premises, appropriate authorities will be called and violators may
be subject to penalties in accordance with laws and local ordinances.

The term “electronic cigarette” means any oral device that provides a vapor of liquid nicotine,
lobelia, and/or other substance, and the use or inhalation of which simulates smoking. The term
shall include any such devices, whether they are manufactured, distributed, marketed or sold as
e-cigarettes, ecigars, e-pipes, vaporizers, or under any other product name or descriptor.

Legal Ref.: Sections 101.123 Wisconsin Statutes (Smoking Prohibited)
120.12(20) (School Board Duties to Prohibit Tobacco Use on School Premises)
134.66(1){f) (Definition of Nicotine Product)
139.75(12) Definition of Tobacco Products
Pro-Children Act of 2001 (Smoking Prohibited in Indoor Facilities Providing Education
Services to Children)

Local Ref: Policy #443.41/522.11 — Definitions Relating to Alcohol, Tobacco/Nicotine and Other
Drug Prohibitions
Policy #522.2 — Tobacco/Nicotine Use by Staff on School Premises
Policy #832.1 - Use of Tobacco/Nicotine Products on School Premises

T T T L ST
e e T e T ———

BEvansville Community School District Policy 832 Page 1 of 1



Revised: September 12, 2005 832.1
Revised: April 9, 2014

Revised:

1%t Reading: 2/10/16; 2 Reading: 2/24/16

USE OF TOBACCO/NICOTINE/ELECTRONIC CIGARETTE PRODUCTS
ON SCHOOL PREMISES

The Evansville Community School District prohibits the use of all tobacco and/or nicotine produects,
and electronic cigarettes, at all times on school premises, whether during the school day or outside
the school day, and at all school-sponsored activities off school premises in which students are a part.
School premises includes all property owned by, rented by or under the control of the District
including buildings, grounds and vehicles.

The term “electronic cigarette” means any oral device that provides a vapor of liquid nicotine,
lobelia, and/or other substance, and the use or inhalation of which simulates smoking. The term shall
include any such devices, whether they are manufactured, distributed, marketed or sold as e-
cigarettes, ecigars, e-pipes, vaporizers, or under any other product name or descriptor.

A. Students
Any violation of this policy by students shall be subject to disciplinary procedures as outlined
in the student handbook.

B. Emplovees
Any violation of this policy by school employees shall be subject to the following

disciplinary procedures:

1* Offense: Verbal warning with written documentation. A copy of printed policy will be
sent to the employee.

2" Offense: Conference with building principal and written reprimand placed in personnel
file.

3" & Subsequent Offenses: Meeting with district administrator and suspension for one or
more days without pay. Suspension may be waived if the employee completes a
district approved tobacco/nicotine use cessation program.

C. Chaperones
Parents or community members who veolunteer to chaperone students at school sponsored

events are prohibited from using tobacco and/or nicotine products while performing this
service, Violation may prohibit service as a chaperone in the future.

D. Citizens
Citizens who are observed using tobacco and/or nicotine products on school premises are
prohibited from doing so. Any individual who fails to comply with the request, will be
referred to the appropriate supervisory staff for possible removal from school premises. If
said individual does not leave the premises, appropriate authorities will be called and
violators may be subject to penalties in accordance with laws and local ordinances.

Legal Ref.: Sections 101,123 Wisconsin Statutes {(Smoking Prohibited)
120.12(20) (School Board Duties to Prohibit Tobacco Use on School Premises)
134.66(1)(f) (Definition of Nicotine Product)
m
Evansville Community School District Policy 832.1 Page 1 of 2




136.75(12) Definition of Tobacco Products

Pro-Children Act of 2001  (Smoking Prohibited in Indoor Facilities Providing Education
Services to Children)

Local Ref: Employee Handbook

Policy #443.41/522.11 - Definitions Relating to Alcohol, Tobacco/Nicotine and Other Drug
Prohibitions

Policy #522.2 — Tobacco/Nicotine Use By Staff On School Premises

Policy #832 — Tobacco/Nicotine - Free School Property

m
Evansville Community School District Policy 832.1 Page 2 of 2



VL.

VL.

VIIIL

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda
Waednesday, March 9, 2016
6:00 p.m.
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)
Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Sandra Spanton Nelson  Jane Oberdorf

Eric Busse Melissa Hammann HS Rep Sydney Michael
John Rasmussen Derek Allen HS Rep Emmeline Roth
Approve Agenda.

Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events

March — Art/Music Education Month
Open Enrollment — February 1 - April 29, 2016
Week of the Young Child — April 11-15; Famlly Fun Night Aprll 15 5:30-7:30 pm
Energy Fair — April 22, 2016 -
Back To School Days — August 10, 10:00 am — 2 00 pm and August 16;‘_ 3 00 pm 7:00 pm
Public Presentations.

Information & Discussion: L
A. Read to Someone Presentation by Levi Leonard EIementary School

B. High School Board Representatives Report of Events. ‘

C. Second Reading of Policies: . '
#458 — Evansville Community School D!strlct Wellness.”
#458.1 — District Nutrition Standards: (Student Nutrltlon Procedures).
#458.2 — District Nutrition Standards o
#458.3 — Guidelines for Food and Beverages Offered to Students at School Functions.
#383 — Animals in School. R

6. #834- Domestlc Pets on Schoaol PremISES

Public Presentatlons '

Business (Actlon Items)
A. Approval 0f4l< Handbook.

B. Approval of Staff Changes:
C. Approval of Stafﬂng Proposal

Consent (Actlon ltems):.
A yval of Policies:

1320 - _General Organization Plan.
#343:1313 Online Learning/Virtual School Program.
#343.31 — Online Learning/Virtual School Program-Administrative Rule.
#343.3 Form — Virtual School Program Form.
#522.2 — Tobacco/Nicotine/Electronic Cigarette Use By Staff On School Premises.
#832 — Tobacco/Nicotine-Free School Property.
#832.1 — Use of Tobacco/Nicotine/Electronic Cigarette Products On School Premises.
B. Approval of February 24 Regular Meeting Minutes.
C. Approval of February Bills and Reconciliation.

Future Agenda —April 13 Regular Meeting Agenda.
Adjourn.

vk wneE

N U S WN R
T n



